
Oversight Board Meeting 
of the Successor Agency City of Foster City 

 
AGENDA 

 
April 5, 2012; 1:00 p.m. 

 
Location: 

Council Chambers – Conference Room 
City of Foster City 

620 Foster City Blvd 
Foster City, CA 

 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 
2. Public Comment 
3. Overview and Applicability of Ralph M. Brown Act and Robert’s Rules of 

Order 
4. Oversight Board Responsibilities and the Provisions of ABx1 26 
5. Future Meeting Dates 

a. Before April 15, 2012 for purposes of adopting the Initial 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

b. Before May 15, 2012 for purposes of adopting the Second 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

c. Recurring Meetings (Monthly, Quarterly, Semi-Annually?) 
6. Adoption by Resolution of By-Laws for the Oversight Board (ACTION) 
7. Selection of Officers (ACTION) 

a. Chair 
b. Vice-Chair 

8. Designation of Secretary Function on Behalf of Oversight Board (ACTION) 
9. Designation of Point of Contact for Department of Finance (ACTION) 
10. Resolution Authorizing the Filing of Statement of Organization with 

California Secretary of State and County Controller (ACTION) 
11. Background of the Foster City Community Development Agency 

a. Formation 
b. Project Areas 
c. Year-End Report for FY 2010-2011 
d. Status as of Date of Dissolution (January 31, 2012) 

i. Preliminary Financial Statements of the Redevelopment 
Obligation Retirement Fund 

ii. Introduction of Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
12. Consideration of Need for Legal Counsel to the Oversight Board 
13. Board Member Statements and Requests 
14. Adjournment 



Any attendee requiring special accommodations should contact Steve Toler, 
Assistant City Manager, at 650-286-3214 or SToler@fostercity.org at least 24 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Oversight Board 
regarding any item on this agenda after the agenda packet was distributed will be 
made available for public inspection at the office of the Assistant City Manager 
located at Foster City City Hall, 610 Foster City Blvd., Foster City, during normal 
business hours and also made available in a marked binder at current and future 
meetings. 



Successor Agency to the Foster City Community Development Agency
Oversight Board Roster

Name Appointed By Title Organization Address 2 City State Zip Email
Linda Koelling City of Foster City 860 Meridian Bay Lane Foster City CA 94404 lakkc@aol.com
Rick Wykoff Estero Municipal Improvement 

District
704 Ranger Circle Foster City CA 94404 richardwykoff@comcast.net

Mary McMillan County - Staff Deputy County Manager County of San Mateo 400 County Center Redwood City CA 94063 mmcmillan@co.sanmateo.ca.us
Dick Bennett County - Public Member 601 Santa Catalina Ln Foster City CA 94404 dwbrda@gmail.com
Jim Keller California Chancellor of 

Community Colleges
Interim President Cañada College 4200 Farm Hill Blvd., Bldg 8 Redwood City CA 94061 kellerj@smccd.edu

Elizabeth McManus San Mateo County Office of 
Education

Deputy Superintendent San Mateo Union 
High School District

650 North Delaware St. San Mateo CA 94401 emcmanus@smuhsd.org

Tina Acree City of Foster City - Recognized 
Employee Group

Business Agent AFSCME Council 57, 
Local 829

1301 Shoreway Rd, Suite 155 Belmont CA 94404 Tina.Acree@ca.afscme57.org

Staff:
Steve Toler Successor Agency - Staff 

Liaison, Board Secretary
Assistant City Manager City of Foster City 610 Foster City Blvd Foster City CA 94404 stoler@fostercity.org

James C. Hardy Successor Agency - Former CDA 
Executive Director

City Manager City of Foster City 610 Foster City Blvd Foster City CA 94404 jhardy@fostercity.org

Curtis Banks Successor Agency - Community 
Development Director

Community 
Development Director

City of Foster City 610 Foster City Blvd Foster City CA 94404 cbanks@fostercity.org

Lin-Lin Cheng Successor Agency - Finance 
Director

Finance Director City of Foster City 610 Foster City Blvd Foster City CA 94404 lcheng@fostercity.org

Foster City Oversight Board Committee Roster.xlsx 5/17/2012







































































































































 

Oversight Board of the 

Successor Agency City of Foster City 

Date: April 5, 2012 

To: Members of the Oversight Board 

Via: James C. Hardy, City Manager 

From: Steve Toler, Assistant City Manager 

Subject: Bylaws for the Oversight Board 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Oversight Board by resolution adopt Bylaws for the 
Oversight Board. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order to facilitate the process of meetings and establish rules for the Oversight 
Board, a set of Bylaws is recommended for adoption.  Staff has prepared suggested 
Bylaws for the Board’s consideration based upon the enacting legislation, “AB 26, 
Blumenfield, Community Redevelopment” (referred to as “ABx1 26”), that authorizes 
the formation of the Oversight Board.  

BACKGROUND and ANALYSIS 

Pursuant to Section 34172 of the Community Redevelopment Law (Health and 
Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.; “CRL”), as modified by the California Supreme 
Court decision entered December 29, 2011, in California Redevelopment Assn. v. 
Matosantos (Case No. S194861), on February 1, 2012, all redevelopment agencies 
in the State of California were dissolved.  On that date, by operation of law pursuant 
to CRL Section 34175, all assets, properties, contracts, leases, books and records, 
buildings and equipment of redevelopment agencies were transferred to successor 
agencies.  On January 9, 2012, the City Council of the City of Foster City adopted 
Resolution No. 2012-2, affirming that the City would serve as the Successor Agency 
to the former Foster City Community Development Agency (“Former Agency”), in 
which capacity the City will wind down the affairs of the Former Agency at the 
direction of an Oversight Board.  The Oversight Board has been established 
pursuant to CRL Section 34179 to assist in the close out and wind down of the 
dissolved Redevelopment Agency. 



Article I – “The Oversight Board”, was developed based primarily upon the provisions 
of ABx1 26. The remaining Articles were developed based upon a variety of factors, 
including sample Bylaws issued by such entities as the California Redevelopment 
Association and law firms specializing in redevelopment law, sample Bylaws from 
other Oversight Boards across the State, and similar provisions guiding the formation 
and conduct of commissions and committees of the City of Foster City. 

The five articles in the Bylaws are summarized below: 

• Article I “The Oversight Board”  – spells forth the purpose, duties and 
responsibilities, and membership of the Oversight Board based primarily upon 
the provisions in ABx1 26. The Article also identifies staff that will be assigned 
as liaisons to the Board, and that staff will serve in the position of secretary to 
the Board. 

• Article II “Officers”  – establishes the positions of Chair and Vice-Chair as 
Officers of the Board, the method of electing said officer positions, and the 
means of succession in the event of a vacancy in an officer position. 

• Article III “Meetings”  – establishes the requirement for an Annual Meeting 
whereby a report of the affairs of the Oversight Board will be made, as well as 
Regular Meetings with a recurring meeting schedule, and Special Meetings as 
may be called from time to time. This Article also spells forth the provisions for 
calling and noticing meetings, primarily based upon the Ralph M. Brown Act 
and Robert’s Rules of Orders. (Note: the Regular Meeting date as provided in 
the attached Bylaws will be modified based upon the Oversight Board’s 
deliberations as to establishing recurring meetings, which was scheduled on 
this agenda to be considered prior to this item.) 

• Article IV “Representation Before Public Bodies”  – identifies the Chair, or 
in his/her absence, a duly authorized designee, as the individual that is 
authorized to officially represent the Oversight Board before other public 
bodies. 

• Article V “Amendments”  – provides that the Bylaws may be amended by 
the Oversight Board as necessary. 

Staff recommends that the Oversight Board adopt a set of Bylaws as a best practice 
in terms of governance of this public organization. 

Attachments: 

• Resolution 

• Bylaws of the Oversight Board for the Successor Agency City of Foster City 
(Successor Agency to the Former Foster City Community Development 
Agency) 



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
CITY OF FOSTER CITY ADOPTING THE BYLAWS OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY CITY OF FOSTER CITY 

WHEREAS, the Foster City Community Development Agency was a 
redevelopment agency organized and existing under the California Community 
Redevelopment Law (Health & Safety Code §33000 et. seq., “CRL”) and was 
authorized to transact business and exercise the powers of a redevelopment agency 
pursuant to action of the Agency’s Board; and, 

WHEREAS, the State of California’s enactment of “AB 26, Blumenfield, 
Community Redevelopment” (referred to as “ABx1 26”) on June 29, 2011, and the 
subsequent ruling by the California Supreme Court entered December 29, 2011 in 
California Redevelopment Assn. v. Matosantos (Case No. S194861), dissolved 
redevelopment agencies effective February 1, 2012; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2012-2 on January 9, 
2012, affirming that the City would serve as the successor agency to the former 
Agency (“Successor Agency City of Foster City”), in which capacity the City will wind 
down the affairs of the Agency at the direction of an oversight board; and, 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2012, pursuant to Section 34172 of the CRL, the 
former Agency was dissolved by operation of law, and pursuant to Section 34175(b), 
all assets, properties, contracts, leases, books and records, buildings and equipment 
of the former Agency were transferred to the control of the City, in its capacity as 
Successor Agency, for administration pursuant to the provisions of Part 1.85 of the 
CRL (Health and Safety Code Section 34170 et seq.); and  

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board of Successor Agency City of Foster City has 
been established pursuant to CRL Section 34179 to take certain actions to wind 
down the affairs of the Agency in accordance with the CRL; and 

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board desires to adopt bylaws for the general 
operation of the Oversight Board, including but not limited to the designation of 
officers and conduct of meetings. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oversight Board of the 
Successor Agency City of Foster City that the Bylaws of the Oversight Board, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, are hereby approved and 
adopted. 



PASSED AND ADOPTED as a resolution of the Oversight Board of the 
Successor Agency City of Foster City at the Initial Meeting held on the 5th day of 
April, 2012 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

   ________________________________________ 
     

_________________, CHAIR 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________________ 
  

 

______________________, SECRETARY 



BYLAWS 
 
 

OVERSIGHT BOARD 
FOR THE 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY CITY OF FOSTER CITY 
(Successor Agency of the Former Foster City Community Development Agency) 

 
 

ARTICLE I - THE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 

Section 1. Name of Oversight Board 
 
 The name of the Oversight Board shall be the “Oversight Board for the 
Successor Agency City of Foster City” (hereinafter referred to as the “Oversight Board”). 
 
Section 2. Purpose 
 
 The Oversight Board shall perform the duties described in Chapter 4 
(commencing with Section 34179) of Part 1.85 of Division 24 of the Health and Safety 
Code (“H&S Code”) in connection with the winding down of the affairs of the former 
Foster City Community Development Agency (hereinafter the “Former Agency”) by the 
City of Foster City in its capacity as the successor agency (hereinafter the “Successor 
Agency”) of the Former Agency. 
 
 a. Duties and Responsibilities 
 
  In accordance with §34181 of the H&S Code, the duties and 
responsibilities of the Oversight Board are to direct the Successor Agency to do all of 
the following: 
 

(1) Dispose of all assets and properties of the Former Agency that 
were funded by tax increment revenues of the dissolved Former 
Agency; provided, however, that the Oversight Board may instead 
direct the Successor Agency to transfer ownership of those assets 
that were constructed and used for a governmental purpose, such 
as roads, school buildings, parks, and fire stations, to the 
appropriate public jurisdiction pursuant to any existing agreements 
relating to the construction or use of such an asset. Any 
compensation to be provided to the Successor Agency for the 
transfer of the asset shall be governed by the agreements relating 
to the construction or use of that asset. Disposal shall be done 
expeditiously and in a manner aimed at maximizing value; 

 



(2) Cease performance in connection with and terminate all existing 
agreements that do not qualify as enforceable obligations, as that 
term is defined in subdivision (d) of §34171 of the H&S Code; 

 
(3) Transfer housing responsibilities and all rights, powers, duties, and 

obligations along with any amounts on deposit in the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund to the City of Foster City pursuant 
to §34176 of the H&S Code; 

 
(4) Terminate any agreement between the Former Agency and any 

public entity located in the County of San Mateo that obligates the 
Former Agency to provide funding for any debt service obligations 
of the public entity or for the construction or operation of facilities 
owned or operated by such public entity, in any instance where the 
Oversight Board finds that early termination would be in the best 
interests of the taxing entities; and 

 
(5) Determine whether any contracts, agreements or other 

arrangements between the Former Agency and any private parties 
should be terminated or renegotiated to reduce liabilities and 
increase net revenues to the taxing entities, and present proposed 
termination or amendment agreements to the Oversight Board for 
consideration and approval. The Oversight Board may approve any 
amendments to or early termination of such agreements where it 
finds that amendments or early termination would be in the best 
interests of the taxing entities. 

 
 b. Approvals Required 
 
  The following actions of the Successor Agency shall first be approved by 
the Oversight Board: 
 

(1) The establishment of new repayment terms for outstanding loans 
where the terms have not been specified prior to February 1, 2012; 

 
(2) Refunding of outstanding bonds or other debt of the Former Agency 

by the Successor Agency in order to provide for savings or to 
finance debt service spikes; provided, however, that no additional 
debt is created and debt service is not accelerated; 

 
(3) Setting aside of amounts in reserves as required by indentures, 

trust indentures, or similar documents governing the issuance of 
outstanding bonds of the Former Agency; 

 
(4) Merging of project areas; 
 



(5) Continuing the acceptance of federal or state grants, or other forms 
of financial assistance from either public or private sources, where 
assistance is conditioned upon the provision of matching funds by 
the Successor Agency as successor to the Former Agency, in an 
amount greater than five percent (5%); 

 
(6) If the City of Foster City and/or the County of San Mateo wish to 

retain any properties or other assets for future redevelopment 
activities, funded from its own funds and under its own auspices, 
the Oversight Board shall approve any compensation agreements 
by and between the City and/or County and other taxing entities to 
provide payments to them in proportion to their shares of the base 
property tax, as determined pursuant to §34188 of the H&S Code, 
for the value of the property retained, provided however that if no 
agreement is reached on valuation of the retained assets, the value 
will be the fair market value as of the 2011 property tax lien date as 
determined by the county assessor. 

 
(7) Establishment of the recognized obligation payment schedule 

pursuant to §34177 of the H&S Code; 
 
(8) A request by the Successor Agency to enter into an agreement with 

the City of Foster City; and 
 
(9) A request by the Successor Agency or a taxing entity to pledge, or 

to enter into an agreement for the pledge of, property tax revenues 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of §34178 of the H&S Code. 

 
 c. Review by State Department of Finance 
 
  Pursuant to § 34177(h) of the H&S Code, the State Department of 
Finance (hereinafter “DOF”) may review any action of the Oversight Board.  The Chair 
of the Oversight Board shall be the contact between the Oversight Board and DOF and 
shall provide his/her telephone and email contact information to DOF.  Actions taken by 
the Oversight Board shall not be effective for three (3) business days, pending a request 
for review by DOF.  In the event that DOF requests review of an action taken by the 
Oversight Board, DOF shall have ten (10) days from the date of its request to approve 
the action or return it to the Oversight Board for reconsideration, and such action shall 
not be effective until approved by DOF.  In the event that DOF returns the action to the 
Oversight Board for reconsideration, the Oversight Board shall consider the modified 
action, and resubmit the modified action to DOF for approval; the modified action shall 
not become effective until approved by DOF. 
 



Section 3. Membership/Duration 
 
 a. Total Membership/Appointment 
 
  Pursuant to §34179 of the H&S Code, the total membership of the 
Oversight Board shall be seven (7) members, selected as follows: 
 

(1) One member shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of San Mateo; 

 
(2) One member shall be appointed by the Mayor of the City of Foster 

City; 
 
(3) One member shall be appointed by the largest special district, by 

property tax share, with territory in the territorial jurisdiction of the 
Former Agency, which is of the type of special district that is eligible 
to receive property tax revenues pursuant to §34188 of the H&S 
Code; 

 
(4) One member shall be appointed by the elected County of San 

Mateo Superintendent of Education or, if the County 
Superintendent is appointed, then this member shall be appointed 
by the County of San Mateo Board of Education; 

 
(5) One member shall be appointed by the Chancellor of the California 

Community Colleges to represent community college districts in the 
County of San Mateo; 

 
(6) One member shall be a member of the public appointed by the 

Board of Supervisors of the County of San Mateo; and 
 
(7) One member representing the employees of the Former Agency 

shall be appointed by the Mayor of the City of Foster City from the 
recognized employee organization representing the largest number 
of Former Agency employees employed by the Successor Agency 
at the time of appointment. 

 
  The Governor may appoint individuals to fill any member position 
identified herein that has not been filled by May 15, 2012.  Following its initial formation, 
the Oversight Board shall report the names of its officers and other members to DOF. 
 
  The members shall serve without compensation and without 
reimbursement for expenses.  Each member shall serve at the pleasure of the entity 
that appointed such member. 
 



 b. Duration 
 
  Pursuant to §34179(j) of the H&S Code, the Oversight Board shall be and 
remain established until the sooner of (1) the date that all indebtedness of the Former 
Agency has been repaid, or (2) July 1, 2016, at which time the Oversight Board shall be 
dissolved and replaced by a single oversight board for all successor agencies within the 
County of San Mateo. 
 
Section 4. Local Entity 
 
 Pursuant to §34179(e) of the H&S Code, the Oversight Board shall be deemed to 
be a local entity for purposes of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the California Public Records 
Act, and the Political Reform Act of 1974. 
 
Section 5. Personal Immunity 
 
 Pursuant to §34179(d) of the H&S Code, Oversight Board members shall have 
personal immunity from suit for their actions taken within the scope of their 
responsibilities as members of the Oversight Board. 
 
Section 6. Fiduciary Responsibilities 
 
 Oversight Board members shall have fiduciary responsibilities to holders of 
enforceable obligations, as that term is defined in §34171(d) of the H&S Code, and the 
taxing entities that benefit from distributions of property tax and other revenues pursuant 
to §34188 of the H&S Code. 
 
Section 7. Resignation 
 
 Any Oversight Board member may resign at any time by giving written notice to 
the Chair, who shall forward such notice to the Successor Agency and to DOF.  Any 
such resignation will take effect upon receipt or upon any date specified therein.  The 
acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
 
Section 8. Filling of Vacancies 
 
 In the event of a vacancy on the Oversight Board, the appointing entity for the 
vacant seat shall select a member to fill such vacancy as soon as reasonably 
practicable, provided however that the Governor may appoint individuals to fill any 
member position that remains vacant for more than sixty (60) days. 
 
Section 9. Staff 
 
 The Oversight Board may direct the staff of the Successor Agency, through the 
City Manager or his/her designee, to perform work in furtherance of the duties and 
responsibilities of the Oversight Board.  The Successor Agency shall pay for all of the 



costs of the meetings of the Oversight Board and may include those costs in the 
administrative budget of the Successor Agency.  The Successor Agency shall keep the 
records of the Oversight Board, and the City Manager shall designate a staff member to 
act as secretary at the meetings of the Oversight Board.  The secretary shall prepare 
agendas and minutes of meetings of the Oversight Board, shall keep a record of the 
meetings in a journal of proceedings of the Oversight Board, and shall attest to and/or 
countersign all documents of the Oversight Board. 
 

ARTICLE II – OFFICERS 
 

 Officers of the Oversight Board shall be elected and serve as follows: 
 
Section 1. Officers 
 
 The officers of the Oversight Board shall consist of a Chair and a Vice Chair, who 
shall be elected in the manner set forth in this Article II. 
 
Section 2. Chair 
 
 The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Oversight Board, and shall submit 
such agenda, recommendations and information at such meetings as are reasonable 
and proper for the conduct of the business affairs and policies of the Oversight Board.  
The Chair shall sign all documents necessary to carry out the business of the Oversight 
Board.  The Chair of the Oversight Board shall be the contact between the Oversight 
Board and DOF and shall provide his/her telephone and email contact information to 
DOF. 
 
Section 3. Vice Chair 
 
 The Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the absence or incapacity 
of the Chair.  In the event of the death, resignation or removal of the Chair, the Vice 
Chair shall assume the Chair’s duties until such time as the Oversight Board shall elect 
a new Chair. 
 
Section 4. Additional Duties 
 
 The officers of the Oversight Board shall perform such other duties and functions 
as may from time to time be required by the Oversight Board, these Bylaws, or other 
rules and regulations, or which duties and functions are incidental to the office held by 
such officers. 
 
Section 5. Election 
 
 The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected from among the members of the 
Oversight Board at the first regular meeting of the Oversight Board.  Thereafter, the 
Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected from among the members of the Oversight Board 



at each annual meeting.  Each officer shall hold office until the next annual meeting of 
the Oversight Board following his/her election and until his/her successor is elected and 
in office.  Any such officer shall not be prohibited from succeeding himself or herself, but 
no person shall be elected as an officer in the same capacity for more than two 
consecutive full terms. 
 
Section 6. Vacancies 
 
 Should the office of the Chair or Vice Chair become vacant, the Oversight Board 
shall elect a successor from among the Oversight Board members at the next regular or 
special meeting, and such office shall be held for the unexpired term of said office. 
 

ARTICLE III - MEETINGS 
 

Section 1. Annual Meetings 
 
 Annual meetings shall be held on the [date/day (e.g., fourth Thursday)] in [  
 ] of each year at the hour of    a.m. / p.m., at the Council Chambers 
Conference Room, 620 Foster City Blvd, Foster City, California, or at such other 
locations as the Oversight Board may designate by resolution, provided however that 
should said date be a legal holiday, then any such annual meeting shall be held on the 
next business day thereafter ensuing which is not a legal holiday.  At annual meetings, 
the Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected; reports of the affairs of the Oversight Board 
shall be considered; and any other business may be transacted which is within the 
purposes of the Oversight Board.  Notice of an annual meeting shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the territorial jurisdiction of the Successor Agency at 
least once not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of the annual meeting. 
 
Section 2. Regular Meetings 
 
 The Oversight Board shall meet regularly on the [date/day (e.g., second and 
fourth Thursday)] of each month, at the hour of    a.m. / p.m., at the Council 
Chambers Conference Room, 620 Foster City Blvd., Foster City, California, or at such 
other locations as the Oversight Board may designate by resolution or in the notice of 
call of any special meeting.  In the event that the regular meeting date shall be a legal 
holiday, then any such regular meeting shall be held on the next business day thereafter 
ensuing that is not a legal holiday.  A notice, agenda and other necessary documents 
shall be delivered to the members, personally or by mail, at least seventy-two (72) hours 
prior to the meeting. 
 
Section 3. Special Meetings 
 
 Special meetings may be held upon call of the Chair, or an affirmative vote by a 
majority of the members of the Oversight Board present at a regular or special meeting 
of the Oversight Board at which a quorum is present, for the purpose of transacting any 
business designated in the call, after notification of all members of the Oversight Board 



by written notice personally delivered or by mail at least twenty-four (24) hours before 
the time specified notice for a special meeting.  At such special meeting, no business 
other than that designated in the call shall be considered. 
 
Section 4. Adjourned Meetings 
 
 Any meeting of the Oversight Board may be adjourned to an adjourned meeting 
without the need for notice requirements of a special meeting, provided the adjournment 
indicates the date, time and place of the adjourned meeting.  Oversight Board members 
absent from the meeting at which the adjournment decision is made shall be notified by 
the Chair of the adjourned meeting. 
 
Section 5. All Meetings to be Open and Public 
 
 All meetings of the Oversight Board shall be open and public to the extent 
required by law.  All persons shall be permitted to attend any such meetings, except as 
otherwise provided by law. 
 
Section 6. Posting Agendas/Notices 
 
 The secretary, or his/her authorized representative, shall post an agenda for 
each regular Oversight Board meeting or a notice for each special Oversight Board 
meeting containing a brief description of each item of business to be transacted or 
discussed at the meeting together with the time and location of the meeting.  
Agendas/notices shall be posted at the Council Chambers, 620 Foster City Blvd., Foster 
City, California (a location readily accessible to the public) at least seventy-two (72) 
hours in advance of each regular meeting and at least twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance of each special meeting. 
 
 All notices required by law for proposed actions by the Oversight Board shall also 
be posted on the Successor Agency’s internet web site. 
 
Section 7. Right of Public to Appear and Speak 
 
 At every regular meeting, members of the public shall have an opportunity to 
address the Oversight Board on matters within the Oversight Board subject matter 
jurisdiction.  Public input and comment on matters on the agenda, as well as public 
input and comment on matters not otherwise on the agenda, shall be made during the 
time set aside for public comment; provided however that the Oversight Board may 
direct that public input and comment on matters on the agenda be heard when the 
matter regularly comes up on the agenda. 
 
 The Chair may limit the total amount of time allocated for public discussion on 
particular issues and/or the time allocated for each individual speaker. 
 



Section 8. Non-Agenda Items 
 
 Matters brought before the Oversight Board at a regular meeting which were not 
placed on the agenda of the meeting shall not be acted upon by the Oversight Board at 
that meeting unless action on such matters is permissible pursuant to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (Gov. Code §54950 et seq.).  Those non-agenda items brought before the 
Oversight Board which the Oversight Board determines will require Oversight Board 
consideration and action and where Oversight Board action at that meeting is not so 
authorized shall be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting. 
 
Section 9. Quorum 
 
 The powers of the Oversight Board shall be vested in the members thereof in 
office from time to time.  A majority of the total membership of the Oversight Board shall 
constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting the business of the Oversight Board, 
exercising its powers and for all other purposes, but less than that number may adjourn 
the meeting from time to time until a quorum is obtained.  An affirmative vote by a 
majority of the total membership of the Oversight Board shall be required for approval of 
any questions brought before the Oversight Board. 
 
Section 10. Unexcused Absences 
 
 If a member shall be absent from three (3) meetings, whether regular or special, 
within six (6) consecutive calendar months, such absence shall result in the termination 
of the membership of the absenting member.  A member’s absence shall be excused if, 
prior to the meeting from which said member will be absent, said member notifies the 
Chair of his or her intent to be absent and the reasons therefor; provided however that a 
member shall be entitled to only two (2) excused absences within twelve (12) 
consecutive calendar months.  At each meeting, after the roll has been called, the Chair 
shall report to the Oversight Board the name of any member who has so notified him or 
her of his or her intent to be absent and the reason for such absence. 
 
Section 11. Order of Business 
 
 All business and matters before the Oversight Board shall be transacted in 
conformance with Robert’s Rules of Order. 
 
Section 12. Minutes 
 
 Minutes of the meetings of the Oversight Board shall be prepared in writing by 
the secretary.  Copies of the minutes of each Oversight Board meeting shall be made 
available to each member of the Oversight Board and the Successor Agency.   
Approved minutes shall be filed in the official book of minutes of the Oversight Board. 
 



ARTICLE IV - REPRESENTATION BEFORE PUBLIC BODIES 
 

 Any official representations on behalf of the Oversight Board before the 
Successor Agency, the San Mateo County Auditor-Controller, the State Controller, 
DOF, or any other public body shall be made by the Chair or his/her duly authorized 
designee. 
 

ARTICLE V - AMENDMENTS 
 

 These Bylaws may be amended upon an affirmative vote by a majority of the 
total membership of the Oversight Board, but no such amendment shall be adopted 
unless at least seven (7) days written notice thereof has previously been given to all 
members of the Oversight Board.  Notice of the amendment shall identify the section or 
sections of these Bylaws proposed to be amended.  The Successor Agency shall be 
notified of any amendments to these Bylaws. 

















 

 

Oversight Board of the 

Successor Agency City of Foster City 

Date: April 5, 2012 

To: Chair and Members of the Oversight Board 

Via: James C. Hardy, City Manager 

From: Steve Toler, Assistant City Manager 

Subject: Background of the Foster City Community Development Agency 

At its Initial Meeting, the Oversight Board will receive a brief presentation by 
Successor Agency staff as to the background of the former Foster City Community 
Development Agency in terms of the remaining obligations and the wind-down of the 
Agency’s operations per the provisions of ABx1 26. 

Background on Project Areas 

To that end, staff provides a brief overview of the three (3) project areas of the former 
Agency, and has attached the respective Redevelopment Plans of each project area 
as background information of which the Oversight Board is requested to become 
familiar prior to the meeting. 

Project Area One 

Formed in September 1981, this was the Agency’s original project area, which 
encompassed primarily the commercial areas in Foster City, and incorporated most 
of the public infrastructure and amenities in its project area in terms of being able to 
invest tax increment funding to develop the necessary infrastructure to support 
redevelopment. As of FY 2010-2011, the tax increment received from this project 
area totaled over 93% of the total tax increment received by the former Agency. 

Project Area One had a term that would expire in 2016, but had a maximum tax 
increment limit (“tax increment cap”) of $170 million.  The tax increment cap was 
reached in April 2011. The Project Area does not receive any further tax increment 
and, as such, beginning in FY 2011-2012 all property taxes are allocated to the 
respective taxing entities. The City was already in the process of winding down the 
operations of Project Area One when ABx1 26 was enacted by the State. 

Marlin Cove 

Formed in January 1999, this project area encompasses the former Marlin Cove 
shopping center on Foster City Blvd at Marlin Ave. The shopping center was 



redeveloped into a mixed-use commercial and residential property. Included in the 
residential component was the requirement for the developer to provide affordable 
housing units that would be subsidized through tax increment. The disposition and 
development agreement (“DDA”) also called for utility and other subsidies to assist 
the residential component in being able to provide affordable housing to residents.  
The project area has a term that expires in 2029, and subsidies are required to be 
paid to the developer from future tax increment until that time per the terms of the 
DDA. 

Hillsdale/Gull 

Formed in January 1999, this project area encompasses the former Port o’ Call 
Shopping Center that was located at the corner of E. Hillsdale Blvd and Gull Avenue. 
It was redeveloped by the developer to provide residential living units in the 
community, of which a portion was dedicated to affordable housing. The DDA calls 
for affordable housing subsidies to be provided to the developer from future tax 
increment. The project area has a term that expires in 2017, and subsidies are 
required to be paid to the developer until that time per the terms of the DDA. 

Year-End Report for FY 2010-2011 

Also provided in the Agenda Packet for this meeting is the Year-End Report for the 
former Agency for FY 2010-2011 that was approved by the Agency Board in 
December 2011. 

Attachments:  

• Plan for the Foster City Community Development Project Area – September 
1981 

• Redevelopment Plan for the Marlin Cove Redevelopment Project – January 
1999 

• Redevelopment Plan for the Hillsdale / Gull Redevelopment Project – January 
1999 

• Year-End Report for FY 2010-2011 



This page intentionally left blank. 
 



CITY OF FOSTER CITY

PLAN
FOR THE

FOSTER CITY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PROJECT AREA

SEPTEMBER 1981

Piedmont Associates
City Bond and Mortgage Corporation



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction

General Definitions

Project Area Boundaries
Project Area Map

Community Development Goals

Development Techniques to Achieve Plan Objectives
Redevelopment Construction Loan Act

Permitted Land Uses
Land Use and Circulation Map

Neighborhood Impact

Methods for Financing the Project

Actions by the City

Enforcement

Duration

Procedure for Amendment

Construction of Replacement Housing

Public Facilities Map

1

3

5
6

7

12
16

28
29

36

38

42

43

43

43

44

45



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

1. INTRODUCTION

The Foster City Community Development Plan consists of text
and three maps, Exhibits A, B & C. This Plan has been
prepared following adoption of the Preliminary Plan by the
Planning Commission of the City.

The Foster City Community Development Plan has been prepared
pursuant to the Constitution of the State of California, the
Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California, and
all applicable laws and local ordinances. The Community
Development Plan has been prepared by Piedmont Associates
and City Bond and Mortgage Corporation, working in
conjunction with the Community Development and City of
Foster City Staff, and has been submitted to the City of
Foster City and Community Development Agancy on October 1,
1981.

This Plan has been prepared to satisfy three basic
requirements;

1. To provide the Community Development Agency with the
maximum ability and flexibility in terms of
implementing programs within the Project Area,
especially in the areas of finance,

2. To set forth certain basic goals of Agency activity.

3. To satisfy the many requirements of State Law
concerning the content of a Community Development Plan.

This document, with certain exceptions, does not require
specific programs of implementation, but instead sets forth
a wide range of activities which may be undertaken by the
Agency. This level of flexibility is necessary because
precise activities to be undertaken by the Agency will be
determined each year, as budgetary and financial resources
permit.

It is important to note, when considering the content and
level of specificity in this document, that a Community
Development Plan is legally viewed as a relatively strict

1



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

document because of the implementation tools and power that
it can invest in the Community Development Agency.
Amendment of this Plan, once it is finally adopted by the
Agency Board, will require duplication of most of the steps
currently being undertaken by the Agency Board, City and
Agency Staff, and consultants. Given the fact that Agency
activities will be strictly limited by the level of funding

and resources available to the Agency, it would be
unrealistic to expect that Agency activities will have a
substantial impact 'overnight.' Instead, Agency activities
will gradually, over the upcoming decades, make it possible
to improve the Project Area.

With these considerations in mind, we have prepared a
relatively flexible document, so that Agency activities and
projects can be fitted and refocused to the needs of the

City and the Project Area over time.

Finally, even though much of the Project Area is vacant
land, the Agency is provided with all of the powers and
tools typically included for rehabilitation of property.
Even though no property rehabilitation is required at this
time, the term of existence for the Agency is set at thirty
five years, and during that period, some property
rehabilitation may be required.

2



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

II. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The following references will be used in this Plan unless
the context otherwise requires:

A. ~~~~~l means the Foster City Community Development
Agency, Foster City, California.

B. fl!l means the City of Foster City, California.

C. Community Development means those activities provide
for under the California Community Redevelopment Codes,
included within the Health and Safety Codes Section
33000 et. seq.

D. County means the County of San Mateo, California.

E. General Plan means the Foster City General Plan.

F. iii£. mea ns the Com munit y Deve lop men t P1a n Map for the
Project Area (Exhibit A).

G. Q!{~~.!:. mea nsanyin di vi d ua lor e ntit yow ni ng II rea 1
pr ope r t y" as defined herein.

H. f~.!:.~.Q~ mea nsan yin d i vi d ua 1, 0 ran y pub 1 i cor pr i vat e
entity.

I. ~.!:.~.Q~il f.!:..Q£.~.!:.!l means movable property, chattels,
property not part of real property defined below.

J. fli~ means the Foster City Community Development Plan
being done under the Redevelopment Law as set forth in IN I

below.

K. Planning Commission means the Planning Commission of
the City of Foster City, California.

L. f.!:..Ql~~! means Foster City Community Development
Project.

3



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

M. f..!:.Ql~~! ~.!:.~.9. mea n s the are a inc 1ud e d wit h i nth e
boundaries of the Foster City Community Development
Project.

N. ~~.9.1 f..!:.Q~.!:.!~ means land; including land under water
and water front property buildings,' structures,
fixtures, and improvements on the land; and property
appurtenant to or used in connection with the land;
every estate, interest privilege, easement, franchise,
and right in land, including but not limited to rights
of-way, terms for years, and liens, charges, or
encumbrances by way of judgement, mortgage or otherwise
and the indebtedness secured by such liens.

O. Redevelopment hA~ means the Community Redevelopment Law
of the State of California (California Health and
Safety Code, Section 33000 et seq.).

P. State means the State of California.

Q. IQ~l~~ Q.!:.Ql~.9.~~~ means the Zoning Ordinance of the
City of Foster City, California.

4



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

I I 1. PROJECT AREA BOUNDARIES

The Foster City Community Development Project Area,
hereinafter called the f~Ql~£! ~~~~ is designated on the
Project Boundary Map designated as Exhibit A, attached
hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.

A legal description of the Project Area will be prepared and
made a part of the Final Plan for the Project.

It should be noted that parts of the Project Area, as noted
on the following map, consist of easements and rights-of
way currently possessed by either the City of Foster City
or the Estero Municipal Improvement District.

5



NOT INCLUDED
IN PROJECT AREA

EXHIBIT A
PROJECT BOUNDARY

--- ClrY aOUNOAlllES

--- ESTEltO I/lIlPItO'JEMENT OISUICT llOUNDIla'l'

CITY OF

o TER CIT
CALIFORNIA

o 0.1 0.25

:-".;,g 1000

soo

0.50

4000

1000 (1 Kilometer)

I MILE



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

IV. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GOALS

The Community Redevelopment Statutes of the State of
Cal ifornia enable a local government to form a Community
Development Agency and determine that visual, economic,
physical and/or social blight exists within an area or areas

of the community. Blight encompasses a broad spectrum of
problems, ranging from a lack of publ ic improvements,
physical characteristics that inhibit sound development of a
particular site, and various other detrimental impacts, as
well as the stereotypical view of visual blight.

The Foster City Agency proposes to use the process of
Community Development to eliminate and reduce many aspects
of economic, physical and social blight presently existing
within the City of Foster City and more specifically within
the boundaries of the Project Area, as set forth in this
Community Development Plan. This action is necessary
because within the Project Area there presently exists
significant amounts of vacant land which have been precluded
from effective development due to faulty planning and a lack
of public improvements and facilities.

Because of faulty planning, primarily in terms of the scope
and type of development which has taken place in the
community, the City has not developed in a balanced manner.
The economic base of the community is seriously lacking in
office, retail, and other commerc-ial uses. To remedy this
situation at this time requires extraordinary public and
private joint activity because of substantial circulation,
public facilities and utilities deficiencies. These
problems, among others, have hindered the development of the
privately held lands within the Project Area.

Furthermore, because of the unique background of the City in
being built virtually all at once and the present
recognition of inadequate design of basic public infra
structure and the unanticipated effects of the soils and
subsoils conditions, a substantial amount of the existing
publ ic facilities and utility systems are in need of
substantial rehabilitation or replacement.

7



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

The General Goals of this Community Development Plan are:

GENERAL GOALS

1. To provide a more diversified and stable ecomomic base
for the Project Area and community.

2. To provide safer,
movement of persons
and community.

more efficient, and economical
and goods within the Project Area

3. To conserve and improve existing public facilities and
to provide new such facilities as needed for the full
and complete development of the Project Area and
community.

4. To provide additional housing opportunities for all
economic segments of the Project Area, community and
region.

5. To provide additional employment opportunities for
residents of the Project Area and community.

6. To create, conserve and protect those natural areas and
environmental qualities that contribute to the beauty
and character of the Project Area and community.

In addition to the above General Goals, the Agency will also
observe and work to fulfill the goals of the City of Foster
City as set forth in the Foster City General Plan.

In recognition of the above General Goals, the Agency will
undertake the following Lines of Action:

Lines of Action

Goal 1 - More Diversified and Stable Economic Base

A. Create public/private partnerships to facilitate
development of remaining commercial and industrial land

8



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

in order to increase and diversify revenue sources
available to the City.

B. Promote a high degree of architectural interest,
quality of construction and urban character in the
development of remaining vacant land in order to
attract owners/tenants best able to contribute to the
total betterment of the Project Area and community.

C. Encourage the development of a variety of commercial
and industrial uses in order to mitigate economic
adversities affecting single commercial or industrial
sectors of th~ economy.

D. Encourage a broad range of building types, densities,
locations and flexibility of use in order to better
react to changing technologies, methods of production
and distribution, and national and local social and
economic circumstances.

Goal 2 - Movement of Persons and Goods

A. Reduce present commute traffic by providing local
employment opportunities through the development of now
vacant commercial and industrial lands.

B. Reduce present and future commute traffic by use of car
and van pools, staggered and/or flexible work hours and
improved transit services.

C. Integrate local transportation plans with other local,

regional and state plans.

D. Improve overall vehicular circulation by the
construction of needed circulation improvements.

E. Develop local public and private funding for projects
either not eligible or not now fundable by outside
agencies.

9



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Goal 3 - Improve and Expand Public Facilities

A. Rehabi 1itate or reconstruct deteriorated water, storm
and sanitary utilities, including lines, pumps,
treatment and storage facilities.

B. Develop additional utility systems and facilities to
service full development.

C. Rehabilitate lagoon system by
reconstruction of walls, culverts
outflow facilities.

d red gin g
and intake

and
and

D. Develop parks and recreation faci 1 ities to support
present and future development.

E. Develop safe and adequate educational facilities to
serve residents of the Project Area and community.

F. Reconstruct deteriorated streets.

G. Develop Public Safety and Governmental facilities to
support present and future development.

H. Develop a publicly owned Marina.

Goal 4 - Housing Opportunities

A. Create publ ic/private partnerships to provide
affordable housing, with use of state and federal
programs as economic incentives to such development.

B. Use funds available per Community Redevelopment laws in
support of affordable housing opportunities.

C. Amend local laws as appropriate to respond to evolving
life styles and economic conditions necessitating
smaller unit sizes and, where allowable and desirable,
more dense development.

10



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Goal 5 - Employment Opportunities

A. Provide additional employment opportunities through the
development of now vacant commercial and industrial
lands.

B. Encourage development of child care facilities in both

residential and employment areas and pursue amendment
of local law, if necessary, to allow such facilities.

C. Use Industrial Development Bond tax-exempt financing
programs, where possible, to facilitate commercial and
industrial development.

Goal 6 - Natural Areas and Environmental Qualities

A. Coordinate local plans for the creation, conservation
and enhancement of natural areas with similar regional,
state and federal plans.

B. Encourage development that recognizes and addresses the
concerns of the community to preserve the natural
environment.

C. Require future development and redevelopment to enhance
the water oriented and open space qualities which give
form and character to the community.

In addition to the above-stated Goals and Lines of Action,
the following objectives are recognized by the Agency:

1. The Agency shall attempt to avoid
impact of project activities upon
outside the Project Area.

any undesirable
adj acent areas

2. The Agency shall attempt to provide whatever publ ic
improvements may be needed to support the objectives of
the Plan. Such improvements may be in any part of the
Project Area, or beyond project boundaries where
essential to the success of the project.

11



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

V. DEVELOPMENT TECHNIQUES TO ACHIEVE PLAN OBJECTIVES

The development of the Community Development Project will be
undertaken in accordance with the provision of the
California Community Redevelopment Law. At this time, it is
anticipated that the use of financial and tax incentives
will provide sufficient incentive to the private sector for
realization of the improvement of the Project Area and the
eradication of blighting influences.

The Agency proposes to strive for successful economic,
social and physical development within the Project Area by:

1. Installation, construction, or reconstruction of
streets, utilities, landscaping, and other on-site and
off-site improvements.

2. Encouragement of development of land by private
enterprise for use in accordance with this plan.

3. Providing for open space and recreational land use.

4. Limited acquisition of real property.

5. Relocation assistance to displaced residential and non
residential occupants.

6. Disposition of property for uses in accordance with
this plan.

7. Provision of tax-exempt financing to those projects in
conformance to the Community Development Plan as well
as all appropriate City Codes and Plans.

8. Utilization of tax-exempt financing vehicles available
to the Agency, the City, and Estero District including
but not limited to those authorized by the
Redevelopment Construction Loan Act, those avai lable
through the General Powers of the Agency, and those
available via the Parking and Assessment District
Statutes of the State of California.

12



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Redevelopment Construction Loan Act Financing
and

General Agency Powers Financing

The Redevelopment Construction Loan Act (RCLA or 5B 99)
as well as the General Powers of the Agency provide the

authority for the Agency to issue tax-exempt mortgage
revenue bonds for the financing of housing construction as
well as the development and construction of commercial
factlities. These tax-exempt bonds are issued at below
market interest rates because of the tax-exemption, but do
not lead to any additional taxes because the specific
projects financed by the bonds underwrite the debt service
of the bonds.

The Agency may use RCLA financing to assist in the
production of affordable housing. Given the current high
interest rates and money market instability, RCLA financing
for new housing is the most effective tool available to the
City and Agency in terms of seeing that some affordable
housing will be constructed within the community.

Commercial projects may also be eligible for RCLA and-or
General Powers financing. This below-market financing for
new development will make it financially feasible for
developers and property owners to undertake additional
landscaping, architechtural amenities, and other project
enhancements that otherwise would be too costly.

In all cases, RCLA financing will only be available to those
projects which fully satisfy all local zoning and land use
considerations. As a general rule, the Agency will expect
that projects should show additional benefits to the
community due to the provision of lower cost RCLA mortgage
financing.

A. Participation ~ Owners and Business Tenants

The following part of the Plan is concerned with assuring
that joint public-private activities will be undertaken
successfully and to the maximum benefit of the Project.

13



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Even though the rehabilitation of privately held property is
not now required within the Project Area, the Agency may
become active in this area over the thirty five (35) year
duration of the Project.

1. Opportunities for Q~ners and Business Tenants

The Agency shall extend reasonable preferences to
persons who are engaged in business in the"Project
Area, to continue or re-enter in business within the
Project Area if they meet the requirements prescribed
in this Plan. For that purpose the Agency will adopt
rules for re-entry of business in the Project Area.

It is the policy of the Agency to encourage the
participation of property owners and businesses within
the Project Area as such is necessary if the
Community Development process is to be successful in
improving the Project Area.

It is further the policy of the Agency to refrain from
the acquisition of real property within the Project
Area from owners who wish to remain and participate in
the development of their property. To the extent
possible the -Agency shall attempt to acquire property
only where there is a willingness to sellon the part
of the private property owner. It is anticipated that
the acquisition of real property within the Project
Area will be limited and that the Agency's power of
eminent domain will be used only in those rare
instances in which the Agency determines that the
acquisition of certain real property is necessary and
is in the best interest of the project.

It is the policy of the Agency to minimize acquisition
of private property when possible and to vigorously
pursue the encouragement of participation within the
development program of property owners and business
within the Project Area. Said participation shall be
pursued by the Agency by allowing owners of parcels of
real property to: retain all or a portion of their
properties; to acquire adjacent or other properties in

14



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

the Project Area; and to upgrade and develop their
property in conformance with this Plan.

In the event a participant fails or refuses to
maintain, rehabilitate or develop his or her real
property pursuant to this Plan and/or the participation
agreement, as an alternate thereto, the Agency is

authorized but is not required to acquire the real
property or any interest herein which if acquired may
be sold or leased for rehabilitation or development in
accordance with this Plan and the rules for owner
participation.

The Agency may determine that certain real property
within the Project Area presently meets the
requirements and objectives of this Plan and the owners
of such properties will be permitted to remain as
conforming owners without a participation agreement
with the Agency, provided such owners continue to
operate and use the real property within the
requirements of this Plan.

The Agency may also determine that certain real
property within the Project Area is substantially in
conformance with the requirements and objectives of
this Plan and the owners of such properties shall be
allowed to remain as conforming owners provided said
owners adequately landscape such property.

The Agency shall not acqui r e , through the use of
eminent domain, conforming property owned by conforming
owners when establ ished by a resolution of the Agency
as set forth in Section B (1) infra.

In the event any of the conforming owners desire to:

a) Con s t r uc tan y a d d i t ion a 1
substantially alter or modify
on any of the real property
conf orm i ng; or

improvements or
existing structures
described above as

b) acquire additional real property within the

15



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Project Area,

then such conforming owners may be required to enter
into a participation agreement with the Agency in the
same manner as required for owners of non-conforming
properties.

2. Rules for Participation Opportunities, Priorities and
Preferences

Owners of property and business tenants may participate
in the development of property in the Project Area in
accordance with the Preference Rules and Participation
Rules adopted or subsequently amended by the Agency.
fn general, these rules shall provide that in the event
of displacement as a result of Agency activities
existing business owners and business tenants within
the Project Area be given preference for re-entry into
business within the redeveloped Project Area. Owners
will be required to submit proof to the Agency of their

qualifications and financial ability to carry out their
agreement with the Agency.

3. Participation Agreements

Each participant, not a conforming owner, shall enter
into a binding agreement with the Agency, at the option
of the Agency, by which the participant agrees to
rehabilitate, develop, or use the property in
conformance with the Plan and to be subject to the
provisions hereof. In such agreements, participants
who retain real property shall be required to join in
the recordation of such documents as are necessary in
the determination of the Agency to make the provisions
of this Plan applicable to their properties.

Participation Agreements will be required for all
property development or rehabilitation if the Agency is
to provide financial assistance to the respective
property in question. Otherwise, a Participation
Agreement will be required only in those cases where
the Agency, by resolution, finds that there is a need

16



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

for such Agreement to implement the goals of the Plan.

B. Property Acquisition

As presented in the Goals of this Plan, the Agency will
always first work with the property owner to assure that the
specific property is improved in conformance with this Plan
and the General Plan of the City.

1. Acguisition Qf Real Pro~l

Except as specifically exempted herei n, the Agency may,
but is not required to, acquire or obtain options to
acquire real property located in the Project Area, by
gift, devise, exchange, purchase, eminent domain or any
other lawful method whatsoever. The Agency may also
acquire any other interest in real property less than
fee interest.

Since it is in the public interest and is necessary for
the elimination of those conditions requiring
redevelopment, the power of eminent domain may be
employed by the Agericy in some instances to acquire
real property in the Project Area. However, said power
of eminent domain will not be exercised when: .

a) The property in question is improved with a
structure and the Agency has determined by
resolution that the rehabilitation of the
structure and its proposed use is consistent with
the objectives of the Plan and that such
rehabilitation is in the best interest of the
project and the owner has thereafter entered into
an owner participation agreement with the Agency
and is faithfully performing under the terms of
the agreement.

b) The property in question is improved by a
structure and the Agency has determined by
resolution that said structure and its use is
consistent with the objectives of the Plan, that
such property conforms to the Plan and that no

17



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

owner participation agreement is necessary so long
as the structure is adequately maintained and
properly 1andscaped.

c) The property in question is owned by a publ ic
body, unless prior consent is obtained from that
public body. Prior to any acquisition through
eminent domain the Agency shall adopt a resolution
declaring a need to acquire any specific property
and authorizing the acquisition by such a method.

The Agency must commence eminent domain proceedings
within twelve years from the adoption of the ordinance
including said property in the project area. The time
limit on commencing an action in eminent domain cannot
be extended without further amendment to the Plan.

2. Acguisition of Personal Propertr

Generally, personal property shall not be acqui red.
However, where necessary in the execution of this Plan,
the Agency is authorized to acquire personal property
in the Project Area by any lawful means.

C. Cooperation with Public Bodies

Certain public bodies are authorized by state law to aid and
cooperate, with or without consideration, in the planning,
undertaking, construction, or operation of this Project.
The Agency shall seek the aid and cooperation of such publ ic
bodies and shall attempt to coordinate this Plan with the
activities of such public bodies in order to accomplish the
purposes of redevelopment and the highest public good.

The Agency by law is not authorized to acquire real property
owned by public bodies without the consent of such public
bodies. The Agency, however, will seek the cooperation of
all public bodies which own or intend to acquire property in
the Project Area. The Agency shall have the right to impose
on all public bodies the planning and design controls
contained in the Plan to insure that present uses and any
future development by public bodies conform to the

18



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

requirements of this Plan. Any public body which owns or
leases property in the Project Area will be afforded all the
privileges of owner and tenant participation if such body is
willing to enter into a participation agreement with the
Agency.

D. Property Management

During such time as property in the Project Area is owned by
the Agency, such property shall be under the management and
control of the Agency. Such property may be rented or
leased by the Agency pending its disposition for
redevelopment.

In any year during which ~he Agency owns property in the
Project Area, the Agency may, but shall not be required to,
pay to the City, County, or any district or other public
corporation which would have levied a tax upon such property
had it not been exempt an amount of money in lieu of taxes;
provided that no such payment shall be made for any period
during which such property is devoted to a public use.

E. Relocation of Persons Displaced

When undertaken, the relocation of persons and business will
be subject to the following standards:

1. Assistance ~ Finding Other Locations.

The Agency shall assist all families and single persons
displaced by the Project in finding other locations and
facilities. There are, in areas in the City, other
than the Project Area (areas not generally less
desirable in regard to public utilities and public and
commercial facilities and at rents or prices within the
financial means of the families and persons displaced
from the Project Areas), decent, safe and sanitary
dwellings equal in number to the number of and
available to such displaced families and persons and
reasonably accessible to their places of employment.
In order to carry out the Project with a minimum of
hardship to persons displaced from their homes, the

19



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Agency shall assist individuals and families in finding
housing that is decent, safe, sanitary, within their
financial means, in reasonable and convenient
locations, and otherwise suitable to their needs. The
Agency is also authorized to provide housing outside
the Project Area for displaced persons.

2. Relocation Payments.

The Agency may pay reasonable moving expenses to
persons (including families, business concerns and
others) displaced by the Project. This provision is
not intended to provide incentives for commercial and
industrial business to move out of the Project Area.
The Agency may make such relocation payments for moving
expenses where the Agency determines it is in the best
interest of the Project and not to do so would create a
hardship on the persons involved. The Agency may make
such other payments as may be in the best interest of
the Project and for which funds are available. The
Agency shall make all relocation payments required by
applicable law.

F. Demolition, Clearance, Pubilc Improvements, Building
and Site Preparation

1. Demolition and Clearance

The Agency is authorized to demolish, clear or move
buildings, structures, and other improvements from any
real property owned or acquired by the Agency in the
Project Area as necessary to carry out the purposes of
this Plan.

2. Public Improvements

The Agency is authorized to install and construct or to
cause to be installed and constructed' the public
improvements and public utilities (within or outside
the Project Area) necessary to carry out this Plan.
Such public improvements include, but are not limited
to, bridges, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks,

20



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

street lights, sewers, storm drains, traffic signals,
electrical distribution systems, natural gas
distribution systems, water distribution, production,
and storage systems, buildings, parks, off-street
parking, plazas, playgrounds, and landscaped areas.

It is anticipated that the following public
improvements including the costs of property
acquisition, site preparation, design and construction
may be undertaken:

a. Undergrounding of utilities within the Project
Area.

b. Development of additional park space.

c. Development or purchase of additional community
facilities.

d. Construction of school facilities within the
Project Area.

e. Improvements to and expansion of the municipal
utility system.

f. Improvements to the lagoon system.

g. Improvement and construction of traffic facilities

3. Preparation of Building and Develo£~ent Sites

The Agency is authorized to prepare or cause to be
prepared as building and development sites any real
property in the Project Area owned or acquired by the
Agency.

G. Rehabilitation and Moving of Structures ~ the Agency

1. Rehabilitation

The Agency is authorized to rehabilitate or to cause to
be rehabilitated any building or structure in the

21



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Project Area acquired by the Agency. The Agency is

also authorized and directed to advise, encourage, and
assist in the rehabilitation of property in the Project
Area not acquired by the Agency.

2. ~.Q~ of Structures

As necessary in carrying out this Plan, the Agency is
authorized to move or cause to be moved any bui lding or
other structure to a location within or outside the
Project Area.

H. Property Disposition and Development

1. Real Property Disposition and Development

a) General

For the purposes of this Plan, the Agency is
authorized to sell, lease, exchange, subdivide,
transfer, assign, pledge, encumber by mortgage or
deed of trust, or otherwise dispose of any
interest in real property. To the extent
permitted by law, the Agency is authorized to
dispose of real property by negotiated leases or
sales without public bidding.

All real property acquired by this Agency in the
Project Area shall be sold or leased for
development for the uses permitted in the Plan.
Real property may be conveyed by the Agency to the
City or any other public body without charge.

Property containing buildings or structures
rehabi 1 itated by the Agency shall be offered for
resale within one year after completion of
rehabilitation or an annual report concerning such
property shall be published by the Agency as
required by law.

The Agency shall reserve such powers and controls
in the disposition and development documents as my

22



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

be necessary to prevent transfer, retention, or
use of property for speculative purposes and to
insure that development is carried out pursuant to
this Plan.

b) Purchase and Development by Participants

Pursuant to the provisions of this Plan and the
rules adopted by the Agency, the Agency may offer
real property in the Project Area for purchase and
development by owner and business-tenant
participants prior to the time that real property
is made available for purchase and development by
persons who are not owners or business-tenants in
the Project Area.

c) Purchase and Development Documents

To provide adequate safeguards to insure that the
provisions of this Plan will be carried out and to
prevent the recurrence of blight, all real
property sold, leased, or conveyed by the Agency,
as well as all property subject to participation
agreements, shall be made subject to the
provisions of this Plan by leases, deeds,
contracts, agreements, declarations of
restrictions, provisions of the zoning ordinance,
conditional use permits, or other means. Where
appropriate, as determined by the Agency, such
documents or portions thereof shall be recorded in
the office of the Recorder of the County.

The leases, deeds, contracts, agreements, and
declarations of restrictions may contain
restrictions, covenants, covenants running with
the land, rights of reverter, conditions,
subsequent, equitable servitudes, or any other
provision necessary to carry out this Plan.

All property in the Project Area is hereby subject
to the restriction that there shall be no
discrimination or segregation based upon race,

23



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

religion, sex, or national origin, in the sale,
lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure,
or enjoyment of property in the Project Area. All
property sold, leased, conveyed, or subject to a
participation agreement shall be made expressly
sUbject by appropriate documents to the
restriction that all deeds, leases, or contracts
for the sale, lease, sublease, or other transfer
or use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of land in
the Project Area shall contain such
non~iscrimination and nonsegregation clauses as
are required by law, and as set forth in Section
1. herein. Appropriate convenants running with
the land which will prohibit such restrictions
shall be included in the disposition documents.

d) Development

To the extent now or hereafter permitted by 1 aw,
the Agency is authorized to pay for all or part of
the value of the land and the cost of the
installation and construction of any building,
facility, structure, or other improvements either
within or outside the Project Area for itself or
f·o ran y pub 1 i c bod y 0 r e ntit y tot he ext e nt t hat
such improvements would be of benefit to the
Project Area.

During the period of development in the Project
Area, the Agency shall insure that the provisions
of this Plan and of other documents formulated
pursuant to this Plan are being observed, and that
development in the Project Area is proceeding in
accordance with development documents and time
schedules.

The Agency shall require that development plans on
property acquired from Agency or on property
subject to an owner participation agreement be
submitted to Agency staff for approval and review.
All development must conform to this Plan and all
applicable Federal, State, and local laws, except

24



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

as such may be modified by requirements of this
Plan or Agency agreements entered into to carry
out the purposes of this Plan.

e) Obligations to be Imposed on Developers

1) Purchasers of land acquired from Agency or
subject to an owner participation agreement

within the Project Area shall be required to
develop such land in accordance with the
provisions of this Plan. No building, sign or
structure shall be constructed upon any part of
such land unless architectural plans and
specifications, showing the nature of such
con s t ruc t i on, parking, loading, surface treatment
and landscaping, the location and orientation of
structure(s) on the building site and, when
requested, the grading plans for the building site
to be built upon, shall have been submitted to,
reviewed and approved in writing by the Agency.
The Agency shall have the right to refuse to
approve any such plans or specifications when in
the opinion of the Agency such plans or
specifications do not conform with the conditions
and objectives of the Plan.

2) Acquirers, users or developers of land
acquired from Agency or subject to an owner

participation agreement within the Project Area
must commence the erection of any building,
prosecute diligently the work thereon and complete
it with such reasonable period of time as agreed
upon with the Agency.

3) Persons who are engaged in business in the
Project Area shall be granted preference by

the Agency to re-enter in business within said
Area after redevelopment if they otherwise meet
the requirements prescribed by the Plan.

4) The acquirer, user, or owner
responsible for complying

shall be
with all

25



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

applicable State and local laws, ordinances and
codes, in effect from time to time not superseded
by this Plan.

2. Personal Propertl Disposition

For the purpose of this Plan, the Agency is authorized

to sell, lease, exchange, transfer, assign, pledge,
encumber, or otherwise dispose of personal property.

Ie Prevention of Discrimination

1. Development

The developer shall comply with all State and local
laws, in effect from time to time, prohibiting
discrimination or segregation by reason of race,
r eli gion, s ex, age, nat ion alor i gin, ad 0 pte din the
sale, lease or occupancy of the property.

Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code (Sections
33337 and 33435-33436), contracts entered into by the
Agency relating to the sale, transfer or leasing of
land, or any interest therein acquired by the Agency
within any Area or project, the provisions of said
Section in substantially the form set forth therein
shall be included in such contracts, and such contracts
shall further provide that the provisions of said
Section shall be binding upon and shall obligate the
contracting party or parties and any subcontracting
party or parties and all other transferees under the
ins t r um e nt .

2. Contracts

All deeds, leases or contracts for sale, lease,
sublease or other transfer of any land in the Project
Area shall contain the following nondiscrimination
clauses as prescribed by California Health and Safety
Code, Section 33236: (as amended).

In deeds the following language shall appear:

26



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

"The grantee herein covenants by and for himself, his heirs,
executors, administrators and assigns, and all persons
claiming under or through them, that there shall be no
discrimination against, or segregation of, any person or
group of persons on account of race, rel igion, sex, or
national origin, in the sale, lease, sublease, transfer,
use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of the premises herein
conveyed, nor shall the grantee himself or any person
claiming under or through him establish or permit any such
practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with
reference to the selection, location, number, use or
occupancy of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees, or
vendees in the premises herein conveyed. The foregoing
covenants shall run with the 1and."

In leases, the following language shall appear:

"The lessee herein covenants by and for himself, his heirs,
executors, administrators, and assigns, and all persons

claiming under or through him, and this lease is made and
accepted upon and subject to the following conditions:
"That there shall be no discrimination against or
segregation of any persons or group of persons, on account
of race, religion, sex, or national origin, in the leasing,
subleasing, transferring, use, occupancy, tenure, or
enjoyment, of the premises herein leased, nor shall the
lessee himself, or any person claiming under or through him,
establish or permit any such practice or practices of
discrimination or segregation with reference to the
selection, location, number, use, occupancy, or tenants,
sublessees, subtenants, or vendees in the premises of herein
l e as ed ."

3. Duration

The convenants in deeds, leases, and contracts from or
with the Agency, with respect to Prevention of
Discrimination, shall remain in effect in perpetuity.

27



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

V1. PERM ITTED LAND USES

The City of Foster City has adopted a General Plan which is
in conformance with the State requirements for General
Plans. The permitted land uses of this Agency Plan have
been established so as to be consistent with and conform to
the land uses of the Foster City General Plan, and it is
intended that all provisions of zoning, sign and design
review ordinances and specific plans are applicable to
development in this area.

Further, it should be noted that the applicable zoning and
planning processes will still have full effect and serve as
the primary determinant for land use decisions. These more
general land use designations are being used because the
existing zoning and General Plan designations are adequate,
and there is no need for another level of precise land use
designations.

A. MAP

A land use map showing the permitted land uses and major
circulation routes within the Project Area is attached
hereto as Exhibit B.

B. MAJOR LAND USES

1. Residential/Public

The areas shown on the Project Area Land Use and
Circulation Plan Map as Residential/Public shall be
developed in accordance with the provisions of the
Residential and Parks and Schools categories of the
General Plan Land Use Element and the Public Facilities
category of the Zoning Ordinance,as determined to be
applicable in the processing of development proposals.

2. Industrial

The areas shown on the Project Area Land Use and
Circul ation Pl an Map as Industri al shall be developed
in accordance with the provisions of the Industrial,

28



.._ .._ CITY IlOVNDAItIU

UTERO IMFttCNEMENT QISTtKT

STREETS

NOT INCLUDED
IN PROJECT AREA

IELAXHIBIT B
NO USEI........... and CIRCUL

I::{{}{ifl RESIDENTIAL/PUBLIC ATION PLAN

.. INDUSTRIAL

_ COMMERCIAL

5000 FEET

5000 METERS

4000

1000 (I Kilometer)

0.50

500

o 0;,....1~--
• • 0.25o~;:m 1000 ro-----~IT

CALIFORNIA

CITY OF

_......J........F__S T E R



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Residential and Parks and Schools categories of the
General Plan Land Use Element, as determined to be
applicable in the processing of development proposals.

3. Commercial

The areas shown on the Project Area Land Use and
Circul ation Pl an Map as Commerci al shall be developed
in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial and
Residential categories of the General Plan Land Use
Element, as determined to be appl icable in the
processing of development proposals.

C. PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS

All streets within the Project Area may be widened, altered,
or vacated for purposes of development of the Project Area.
New streets may be created as necessary. These publ ic
rights-of-way shall be used for vehicular and/or pedestrian

traffic as well as for public improvements, public and
private utilities, and activities typically found in the
public rights-of-way. Any and all street vacations pursuant
to this Plan shall be in accordance with the City's public
hearing requirements as well as all other applicable law
including, but not limited to, those provisions set forth in
California Streets and Highways Code.

All properties encumbered by existing maintenance and
navigation easements in favor of the City and Estero
Municipal Improvement District shall be subject to any and
all activities that may be undertaken toward the achievement
of the Goals of this Plan and those of the City, including
but not limited to the rehabilitation of the lagoons and
lagoon walls, banks, culverts and bridges.

D. GENERAL CONTROLS AND LIMITATIONS

All real property in the Project Area is hereby subject to
the controls and requirements of this Plan. No real
property shall be developed, rehabi 1 itated, or otherwi se
changed after the date of adoption of the Plan except in

30



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

conformance with the provisions of this Plan and all
applicable State and local laws in effect from time to time.

1. New Construction

All new construction shall comply with all applicable
State and local laws in effect from time to time,
except as inconsistent with agreements entered in by
the Agency under the Authority of this Plan. All
setback areas shall be landscaped and maintained by
the owners with the exception of any portion necessary
for access which shall be paved in accordance with the
landscaping concept established by the Agency.

Parking facilities shall be provided in accordance with
the criteria set forth in the General Plan and Zoning
Ordinance of the City at the ratio set by the City.
All parking shall be paved and drained so that storm
and surface waters draining from parcels will not cross
public sidewalks, and all parking spaces visible from
the street shall be 1andscaped as necessary to prevent
unsightly barren appearances as set forth by the Plan.
Off-street loading faeil ities, trash areas, and any
outdoor storage of materials approved by the Agency
shall be adequately enclosed or screened by walls,
landscaping, or other such enclosure consistent with
the applicable City Ordinances and in a manner approved
by the Agency.

2. Existin£ Non-Conformin£ Uses

The Agency is authorized to permit an exi sting use to
remain in an existing building in good physical
condition which does not conform to the provisions of
this Plan provided that such use is generally
compatible with the developments and uses within the
Project Area.

3. Rehabilitation

Any structure within the Project Area which will be
retained as part of this Plan shall not be altered,

31



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

reconstructed, or rehabilitated unless it is done so in
conformance with this Plan and any and all guidelines
which may be adopted by the Agency to assist in the
implementation of the Plan. This conformity shall
extend to the architectural character, the publ i c
spaces and other elements as required by the Agency.

4. Q~ Spaces and Landsca~~

The approximate amount of open space to be provided
within the Project Area is set forth in the General
Plan and Zoning Ordinance of the City and is included
as part of the goals and objectives of this Plan.
These areas include, but are not limited to, the total
of all areas which will be in the public rights-of-way,
open space areas, the space around bui 1di ngs, and all
other outdoor areas not permi tted through appl i cabl e
limits of land coverage to be covered by buildings.
Landscaping plans shall be required to be submitted to
the Agency for review and approval.

5. Utilities

The Age n c y s hal 1 r e qui ret hat all uti 1 i tie s be p1 ace d
underground unless otherwise approved by the Agency,
including, but not 1 imited to, the following:
transformer vaults or pads, water meters and valves,
telephone pull boxes, manhole inlets, and drain
facilities, and Cable television.

No use or structure which by reason of appearance,
traffic, smoke, glare, noise, odor, or other similar
factors that would be incompatible with the surrounding
areas or structures shall be permitted in any part of
the Project Area.

7. Nondiscrimination and Nonse~gation

There shall be no discrimination or segregation based
on race, religion, sex, or national origin, permitted,

32



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

in the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy,
tenure, or enjoyment of property in the Project Area.

8. Resubdivision of Parcels

After rehabil itation and-or development pursuant to
this Plan, no parcel in the Project Area, including
any parcel ret a i ned by a conform i n g owner or
participant shall be subdivided without the approval of
the Agency.

9. Variances

Under exceptional circumstances, the Agency is
authorized to permit variances from the limits,
restrictions, and controls established by the Plan. In
order to permit such a variance the Agency must
determine that:

a) The appl ication of one or more of the provi sions

of this Plan would result in unnecessary hardship
to the property owner; and

b) There are exceptional circumstances or conditions
applicable to the property or to the intended
development of the property which do not apply
generally to other properties having the same
standards, restrictions, and controls; and

c) Permitting a variance from the limits,
restrictions, or controls of this Plan will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to property or improvements in the area;
and

d) Permitting a variance will not be contrary to the
objectives of this Plan.

No such variance shall be granted which changes a basic
land use pursuant to this Plan or which permits other
than a minor departure from the provisions of this
Plan. In permitting any such variance, the Agency

33



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

shall impose such conditions as are necessary to
protect the public health, safety, or welfare, and to
assure compliance with the objectives of the Plan.

E. STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT

Within the limits, restrictions, and controls established in
the Plan, the Agency is authorized to establish specific
building heights, building coverage, design criteria,
architectural character, landscaping character, sign
c har act er , t r af f icc i r c u1at ion i ngres s an d e gres s , and any
other development and design control necessary to implement
the Plan. Said controls would relate to both private and
public areas within the Project Area. No new development
shall be constructed and no existing improvements shall be
substantially modified, altered, repaired, or rehabilitated
except in accordance with the aforementioned standards for
development. Said standards may be developed and adopted by
the Agency. The Agency shall not approve plans which do not
comply with the design criteria.

On any building site the bulk of structures shall be
regulated as provided in the City's Zoning Ordinance.

2. Densit,l

The maximum permitted dwelling unit density shall be 35
units per acre of site area, except that housing
designed specifically for the elderly and physically
handicapped may be developed at greater densities.

F. BUILDING PERMIT

1. Revie~ of Applications

Upon the adoption of this Plan, no permit shall be
issued for the construction of any new building or the
addition to an existing building or any permit for
rehabilitation in the Project Area until the

34



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

appl ication for such permit has been processed in the
manner herei n provi ded. Any perm i t that is issued
hereunder must be for construction or maintenance which
conforms to the provisions of this Plan.

The procedure for filing an application for a building
permit shall be the same procedure currently used by
the City in processing building permit applications.
Upon receipt of an application by the Public Works
Department~ the Public Works and Community Development
Department shall submit to the Executive Director (or
the authorized designee(s) of the Executive Director)
of the Agency said application for review to determine
if the proposed improvements conform to the Plan.
Within fifteen (15) days t he r e af t e r , the Executive
Director~ or de s i qne e l s ) , shall submit a report to the
Public Works and Community Development Department on
said application. Said report shall:

a) Deny the application.
b) Approve the application.
c) Approve the application with modifications or

conditions felt to be necessary by the Executive
Director.

After receipt of the report or after 15 days from the
submittal of the application to the Executive Director~

or de s t qn e e l s ) , whichever occurs f t r s t , the Publ i c
Works and Community Development Department shall issue
the permit with condi t t ons , if any, as set forth in the
Executive Director's report, or shall deny the issuance
of the permit pursuant to the Executive Director's
report.

The appl icant or the Agency may appeal the Executive
Director's decision to wi t hho l d , to conditionally
allow, or to allow the issuance of such a permit
pursuant to established City procedures.

35



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

VII. NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACT

The purpose of this section is to describe the impact of the
Project upon the residents of the area and the surrounding
areas in terms of relocation, traffic circulation,
environmental quality, availability of community facilities
and services, on school population and quality of education,
property assessments and taxes as well as other matters
affecting the physical and social quality of the
neighborhood.

A11 of these factors wi 11 be di scussed in depth in the
Environmental Impact Report prepared for the Final Plan. To
include that data herein would be excessively voluminous
and unnecessarily repetitive. However, the following is a
summary of the consideration given to the above factors in
the development of this Plan.

The Project is designed to eradicate the blighted conditions
now prevalent in the area. The primary method of
accomplishing this goal will be the provision of various
economic and financi al incentives to property owners, and
the construction of public improvements. However, should
property acquisition be necessary, properties shall be
acquired and sites cleared for future development in
economic parcel si zes.

An objective of the Community Development Project is to
minimize the displacement of all residents. In parts of the
Project Area where there are proposed no changes in the use
of land or intensity of development, residents who remain
are expected to benefit from environmental improvement.

If Agency activity should require a resident or business
concern to move as a direct result of Agency activity, then
the resident will be assisted in their relocation efforts as
required by State Law, and as specified in the Report on the
Community Development Plan.

Any detrimental impact
neighborhoods will be

on the
avoided

surrounding
through the

residential
appropriate

36



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

exercise of City powers such as zoning and enforcement of
codes.

When completed, the 'Project may introduce an increase in
residential units within the project Area. The Plan and
Project will be focused towards the accomodation of planned

commerci a l , residenti al and industri al development, vi s-a
vis the existing demands being made on the circulation and
public utility systems.

The Project is anticipated to be financed substantially by
tax-increment funding. In this way, there will be the least
burden in taxes to those businesses and homeowners within
the Project Area as well as to the general property taxpayer
in Foster City. Upon completion of the Project, sales tax
and real estate tax revenues available to the City of Foster
City should increase. In light of this growth, the tax
burden of City residents should be lightened.

It is a principal objective of the Agency that the
improvement of the Project Area wi 11 have benefi ci al effects
upon the surrounding neighborhood.

37



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

VIII. METHODS FOR FINANCING THE PROJECT

A. General Description of the Proposed Financing Method

Upon adoption of this Plan by the City Council, the Agency
is authorized to finance this Project with financial
assistance from the City of Foster City, State of
Cal iforni a, San Mateo County, Federal Government, Property
Tax Increments, Interest Income, Agency notes and bonds, or
any other available source.

The advances for survey and planning and the operating
capital for administration of this Project may come through
loans from the City. Such loans shall be on terms
established by the City and the Agency. The City may also
supply additional assistance through City loans and grants
for various public facilities.

As avai 1abl e, gas tax funds from the State of Cal iforni a and

the County of San Mateo and Transportation Development Act
funds may be used toward the cost of the street system and
related improvements. There will also be some revenue
accruing to the Project from interest earned on investments
of Agency funds.

The Agency is hereby authorized to obtain advances, borrow
funds and create indebtedness and other obligations in
carrying out this Plan after first submitting a financing
summary of each project to the City Council. The principal
and interest on such advances, funds, indebtedness and other
obl igations, may be paid from tax increments or any other
funds available to the Agency.

B. Tax Inc rements

All taxes levied upon taxable property within the Project
Area each year by or for the benefit of the State of
California, County of San Mateo, City of Foster City, any
district, or other public corporation (hereinafter sometimes
called "taxing a qe nc i e s ") after the effective date of the
ordinance approving this Plan, shall be divided as follows:

38



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

1. That portion of the taxes which would be produced by
the rate upon which the tax is levied each year by, or
for, each of the taxing agencies upon the total sum of
the assessed value of the taxable property in the
Project Area (as shown upon the assessment roll used in
connection with the taxation of such property by such
taxing agency), last equalized prior to the effective
date of such ordinance, shall be allocated to and when
collected shall be paid into the funds of the
respective taxing agencies as taxes by, or for, said
taxing agencies on all other property paid. For the
purpose of allocatng taxes levied by or for, any taxing
agency or agencies which did not include the territory
of the Project Area on the effective date of such
ordinance but to which such territory has been annexed
or otherwise included after such effective date, the
assessment roll of the County of San Mateo last
equalized on the effective date of said ordinance shall
be used in determining the assessed valuation of the
taxable property in the Project on the effective date;
an d

2. That portion of said levied taxes each year in excess
of such amount shall be allocated to and when collected
shall be pai d into a speci al fund of the Agency to pay
the principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced
to, or indebtedness (whether funded, refunded, assumed
or otherwise) incurred by the Agency to finance or
refinance, in whole or in part, this Community
Development Project. Unless and until the total
assessed valuation of the taxable property in the
Project Area exceeds the total assessed valuation of
the taxable properties in such Project as shown by the
last equalized assessment roll referred to in paragraph
(1) hereof, all of the taxes levied and collected upon
the taxable property in the Project shall be paid into
the funds of the respective taxing agencies. When said
loans, advances, and indebtedness, if any, and interest
thereon, have been paid, all monies thereafter received
from taxes upon the taxable property inthe Project
shall be paid into the funds of the respective taxing
agencies as taxes on all other property are paid.

39



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

The portion of taxes mentioned in subdivision (2) above may
be irrevocably pledged by the Agency for the payment of the
principal of and interest on money advanced, loans, or any
indebtedness (whether funded, refunded, assumed or
otherwise) by the Agency to finance or refinance in whole or
in part, the Foster City Community Development Project.

The Agency is authorized to make such pledges as to specific
advances, loans, indebtednesses, and other obligations as
appropriate, in carrying out the Project.

As to the tax increments generated within the Project Area,
no loans, advances or indebtedness shall be established or
incurred by the Agency after the expiration of fifteen years
from date upon which this Plan was adopted without further
amendment to this Plan.

The undertaking of major circulation improvements, as well
as the rehabilitation of existing public utilities and the
provision of additional public and educational facilities
shall be costly. In 1981 dollars, preliminary estimates
show t ha t over $35,000,000 in publ ic improvements are
required. Given that these improvements will be constructed
over the next decade, as adequate fundi ng is not currently
available, it is likely that the $35,000,000 figure will
increase to at least $55,000,000 due to inflation. It will
be necessary to finance these improvements, and an interest
rate of 10.0% with twenty (20) year term financing is
1 ike 1y . Hence, $55,000,00 0 in ex pen di t ures wil 1 require up
to $128,000,000 in total debt service for said undertakings.
Furthermore, an additional twenty percent (20.0%) of all
expenditures must be earmarked to support and provide
affordable housing, as required by State Law, and it is
estimated that Agency operation and the undertaking of pay
as-you-go minor public improvements will require at least
$10,000,000 of Agency funds over the term of the project.
Given these concerns, the following tax-increment revenue
ceilings will be in effect.

As to bonds issued by the Agency to be repaid in whole or in
part from the allocation of taxes pursuant to Section 33670

40



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

of the California Health and Safety Code, the amount of such
bon de din de bted n e s sou t s t an din g at any 0 net i me S hal 1 not
exceed $55,000,000.

As to the tax increment generated within the Project Area,
no more than $170,000,000 may be divided and allocated to
the Agency without further amendment of this Plan.

C. Other Loans and Grants

Any other loans, grants, or financial assistance from any
other public or private source may be utilized if available.

41



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

IX. ACTIONS BY THE CITY

The City shall aid and cooperate with the Agency in carrying
out this Plan and shall take all actions necessary to ensure
that continued fulfillment of the purposes of the Plan and
to prevent the recurrence or spread in the area of
conditions causing blight. Action by the City may include,
but not be limited to, the following:

A. Initiation and completion of proceedings for opening,
closing, vacating, widening, or changing the grades of
streets, alleys, and other public rights-of-ways, and
for other necessary modifications of the streets, the
street layout, and other public rights-of-way in the
Project Area. Such action by the City shall include
proceedings for the abandonment and relocation of
public utilities in the public rights-of-way as
appropriate to carry out this Plan.

B. Initiation and completion of proceedings necessary for
changes and improvements in publicly-owned public
utilities within or affecting the Project Area.

C. Imposition wherever necessary (by conditional use
permits or other means) of appropriate controls, within
the limits of this Plan, upon parcels in the Project
Area to ensure their proper development and use.

D. Provision for administrative enforcement of this Plan
by the City after development. The City and the Agency
shall develop and provide for enforcement of a program
for continued maintenance by owners of all real
property, both public and private, within the Project
Area throughout the duration of this Plan.

E. Performance of the above, and of all other functions
and services relating to public health, safety, and
physical development normally rendered in accordance
with a schedule which will permit the development of
the Project Area, to be commenced and carried to
completion without unnecessary delay.

42



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

X. ENFORCEMENT

After development, the administrative enforcement of this
Plan or other documents implementing this Plan shall be
performed by the City or the Agency.

The provisions of this Plan or other documents entered into
pursuant to this Plan may also be enforced by Court
litigation instituted by either the Agency or the City.
Such remedies may include, but are not limited to, specific
performance, damages, re-entry, injuctions, or any other
remedies appropriate to the purposes of this Plan. In
addition, any recorded provisions which are expressly for
the benefit of owners of property in the Project Area, may
be enforced by such owners.

XI. lDURATION OF THIS PLAN

Except for the nondiscrimination and nonsegregation
provisions, which shall run in perpetuity, the provisions of
this Plan shall be effective and the provisions of other
documents fo"rmulated pursuant to this Plan ~ay be made
effective for 35 years from the date of adoption of this
Plan by the City Council.

XII. PROCEDURE FOR AMENDMENT

This Plan may be amended by means of the procedure
established in the Redevelopment Law (see California Health
and Safety Code 33450 to 33458), as the same now exi sts or
as hereafter amended, or by any other procedure hereafter
established by law.

43



FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

XIII. CONSTRUCTION OF REPLACEMENT HOUSING

It is not the intention of the Agency, at the time of
adoption of this Plan to eliminate any housing within the
Project Area. However, pursuant to 33334.5 of the
California Health and Safety Code, the Agency shall, within
four years of the destruction or removal of low and moderate
income housing, develop, construct, or cause to be
rehabilitated, developed, or constructed, for rental or sale
to families of low and moderate income, an equal number of
replacement dwelling units at affordable rents or sales
prices within the Project Area or within the territorial
jurisdiction of the Agency, in accordance with all of the
provisions of 33413 and 33413.5 of the California Health and
Safety Code.

44



:1 EXHIBIT C

PUBLIC FACILITIES

~ CIVIC CENTER* MAINTENANCE FACILITY
@ PARK

o SCHOOL
--- cur 8OUNOARIES

.- ESTfIlO IMI"RO'VEMENT DISTRICT aoUNOoU:Y

CITV OF

FOB ER CI
CALIFORNIA

o 0.1 0.25

500

2000

0.53 I MILE

4000 5000 FEET

1000 (1 Klbmet_) 5000 METERS



This page intentionally left blank. 
 







































































This page intentionally left blank. 
 





































































This page intentionally left blank. 
 



1

Mimi Lam

From: Massanda DJohns <MDJohns@smcgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, March 29, 2012 3:11 PM

To: Curtis Banks; Jim Hardy; Lin-lin Cheng; Foster City; Steve Toler; Foster City; Foster City; 

Foster City; Foster City; Foster City; Foster City

Cc: Massanda DJohns; Ramen Prasad; Robyn Rose; Shirley Tourel; Bob Adler; Kanchan 

Charan

Subject: Courtesy Notice - Foster City Agreed Upon Procedures: Phase 1 & 2

Attachments: AUP Phase 1 & 2 - Foster City.pdf

Oversight Committee and Successor Agency of the former RDA, 

  
As we enter the final stages to "certify the initial Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule", we want to keep the 

Oversight Committee and Successor Agency abreast with the progress of the Agreed Upon Procedures (AUP) for the 
County's compliance with minimum AUP as issued by the State Controller's Office.  

  
Please see memo attached for details on the next steps in the process for completing the Agreed Upon Procedures 

engagement in compliance with ABx1 26.  

  
Regards 

  
  

Massanda C. D'Johns, CPA 

Internal Auditor II 
Controller's Office,  
San Mateo County  
555 County Center, 4th Floor 

Redwood City, CA 94063 

PH. 650.599.1164 

Fax 650.363.7888 

mdjohns@smcgov.org 

PONY ID: CTL135 

  

  

 















This page intentionally left blank. 
 



 

 

Oversight Board of the 

Successor Agency City of Foster City 

Date: April 5, 2012 

To: Chair and Members of the Oversight Board 

Via: James C. Hardy, City Manager 

From: Steve Toler, Assistant City Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Need for Legal Counsel to the Oversight Board 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Oversight Board consider whether or not it wishes to 
obtain legal counsel in fulfilling its obligations pursuant to the wind-down of the 
Former Foster City Community Development Agency. 

BACKGROUND and ANALYSIS 

The Oversight Board will be implementing the provisions of ABx1 26 in winding down 
the affairs of the former Foster City Community Development Agency.  It may be 
necessary from time to time for the Oversight Board to consult legal counsel in terms 
of developing and/or interpreting the provisions of various agreements or legislation 
that may have an impact on the Oversight Board decisions and exercise of its 
responsibilities. 

Because of the inherent conflict of interest that would exist, it is not advised, nor will it 
be acceptable, for the City Attorney to the City of Foster City, nor the former Agency 
counsel that is assisting the City in its role as Successor Agency, to provide legal 
counsel to the Oversight Board.  Accordingly, the Oversight Board would need to find 
separate legal counsel to advise the Board on matters where legal interpretation or 
services are required. 

The city attorneys and County Counsel in San Mateo County have recently met to 
discuss this matter and have prepared a document that provides the names of 
alternative legal counsel that the Oversight Boards in San Mateo County can 
consider should they feel the need to obtain legal counsel. That report will be 
provided to the Oversight Board under separate cover in advance of the meeting. 



Staff is recommending that the Oversight Board determine whether or not it is 
interest in obtaining legal services in support of exercising its responsibilities under 
California Health & Safety Code §34179, et seq.   

The following alternatives are provided for consideration: 

1. Determine that legal counsel is required and instruct the Chair and/or a 
subcommittee to interview prospective firms provided at the recommendation 
of the San Mateo County City Attorneys Group and bring forward a 
recommendation to the Oversight Board at a future meeting. 

2. Determine that legal counsel is required and instruct the Chair and/or a 
subcommittee of the board to develop a Request for Proposal to interested 
firms to submit proposals for legal services for Oversight Board consideration 
at a future meeting. 

3. Table this item to a future meeting for due consideration dependent upon 
future deliberations of the Oversight Board. 

4. Determine that legal counsel is not required and, therefore, take no action on 
this item. 

Direction can be provided by minute order. 



This page intentionally left blank. 
 



1

Mimi Lam

From: Steve Toler
Sent: Tuesday, April 03, 2012 2:55 PM
To: Dick W. Bennett (dwbrda@gmail.com); Elizabeth McManus (emcmanus@smuhsd.org); 

Jim Keller (kellerj@smccd.edu); LAKKC@aol.com; Mary McMillan 
(mmcmillan@smcgov.org); Rick Wykoff; Tina Acree (AFSCME)

Cc: Jim Hardy; Curtis Banks; Lin-lin Cheng; Jean Savaree
Subject: FC Oversight Board: Legal Counsel
Attachments: Oversight Board Baum.docx; Oversight Board Labadie.doc; OVERSIGHT BOARD LEGAL 

AGR TEMPLATE .doc

Oversight Board Members: 
 
At our meeting on Thursday (4/5), Item #12 is in regards to whether or not the Oversight Board 
wishes to have legal counsel to assist the Board in exercising its duties and 
responsibilities.  As indicated in the Staff Report, it is not appropriate for the City Attorney for 
the City of Foster City, nor the City’s special legal counsel on redevelopment matters, to 
assist the Oversight Board in its role due to the inherent conflict of interest. Yet the City 
Attorneys, as well as County Counsel, in San Mateo County have been concerned in ensuring 
that the Board has available counsel to assist it in its role. 
 
To that end, the City Attorneys and County Counsel have met over the past couple of months 
in terms of identifying potential attorneys that could provide legal counsel to the Board in its 
deliberations. On Friday, March 30, they met once again to finalize their discussions on this 
matter, and have  identified two attorneys that have the experience and capability to assist the 
Board: Gary M. Baum, and Craig Labadie.  Both attorneys have provided resumes to the City 
Attorneys group, which are attached to this e-mail for your consideration. Both attorneys 
come with the requisite experience that could provide the Board much needed assistance as it 
implements the provisions of ABx1 26. 
 
In addition, the City Attorneys and County Counsel have also prepared a template legal 
agreement that could be used by the Board to actuate and agreement with either attorney, or 
another attorney at the Board’s choosing. That template is attached for your consideration as 
well. 
 
The City Attorneys and County Counsel are strongly recommending that the Oversight Boards 
in the County hire legal counsel to represent it to provide assistance and insight into matters 
that may require interpretation of the provisions of ABx1 26, as well as contractual or other 
matters that may require the expertise of an attorney. 
                                                                                                                                                                 
                       
I wanted to pass this information and the City Attorneys’ recommendations to you in advance 
of the meeting. I will have hard copies available of these documents, as well as this e-mail, at 
your meeting on Thursday. 
 
See you then. 
 
Steve Toler 



2

Assistant City Manager 
City of Foster City 
 



 1

GARY M.  BAUM  
Law Offices of Gary M. Baum   

19925 Stevens Creek Boulevard, Suite 100 
Cupertino, CA  95014-2358 

408-833-6246 
garybaumlaw@gmail.com 

 
BAR   Admitted to California State Bar and Federal Courts, December 1984. 
MEMBERSHIP        Admitted to U.S. Supreme Court 2006. 
 
EMPLOYMENT  Law Offices of Gary M. Baum. December 2010 to the present.  Solo 

practice representing cities in labor, land use and environmental matters.  
General Counsel to the Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Authority a 
13 member Joint Powers Authority including 12 Cities and the County of 
Santa Clara. 

 
 City of Palo Alto – City Attorney . July 2004 to October 2010. 
 Restructured City Attorney’s Office.  Out-sourced litigation.  Increased 

office   productivity more than 100%, with fewer attorneys.  Reduced open 
litigation by more than 25%.  Contributed to the development of City’s 
innovative green building program. Managed office of ten people. 

 
 City of Santa Clara - Assistant City Attorney. April 1998 to June 2004. 

Counsel to Planning Commission.  Developed environmental crimes                  
prosecution program resulting in fines of $1,000,000. 
 
City of Morgan Hill - City Attorney.  November 1993 to March 1998. 
First in-house City Attorney.  Reduced open litigation from 32 cases to 6.          
Defended writ actions in trial court and Court of Appeal. 

 
City of Redondo Beach - Assistant City Attorney.  July 1992 to October        
1993.Counsel to Planning Commission.  Significant reductions made to 
outside counsel expenses. 

 
City of Garden Grove - Acting City Attorney/Senior Deputy City                 
Attorney. May 1989 to June 1992.  Counsel to Planning Commission.  
Prosecuted code enforcement cases.   Defended writ actions.  
 
Ball, Hunt, Hart, Brown & Baerwitz, Long Beach - Associate.  July 1986     
to April 1989.  Represented Cities, School Districts and Developers.  
Prosecuted and defended CEQA writ cases at trial and in Court of Appeal. 

 
Rutan & Tucker, Costa Mesa – Associate. August 1985 to June 1986. 
Represented School Districts, Cities and Developers in Land Use and                
Employment Litigation. 
 
University of Southern California Law School – Land Use Teaching         
Assistant.  July 1983 to May 1984. 

 



 2

PRO TEM/ Temporary Judge, Santa Clara Superior Court & Small Claims Court 
ARBITRATION   Arbitrator/Mediator, Los Angeles County Bar Association. 
BAR  Santa Clara County Bar Association: Member Board of Trustees 2003 - 

2005.   
ASSOCIATION Co-Chair Judiciary Committee 2003 – 2005. 
 Chair of Legal Services Committee 2010. 

Volunteer Pro Bono Project 1995 – present. 
 Volunteer Domestic Violence Limited Scope Representation Project 2005 – 

present. 
   Board Member, Vice President - Pro Bono Project 2011 - present. 
 
PROFESSIONAL  Co-President Bay Area City Attorney’s Association. 2008 - 2010 
ORGANIZATIONS     
 
AWARDS  Access to Justice Award by the Pro Bono Project 2009. 

Pro Bono Attorney of the Year Santa Clara County Bar Association 2007. 
Northern California “Super Lawyer” 2005.   

       
PUBLICATIONS  Land Use Controls: Another Approach to Reality, USC Cites, 1984. 

League of California Cities:  Billing   Protocol, The Directory of Municipal 
Law Practitioners, October 1995. 
California District Attorney's Association Environmental Prosecution. 
Manual: City Attorney Prosecution of Environmental Crimes, February 
2004, Updated September 2009. 

 
PRESENTATIONS  League of California Cities:  Litigation for the City Attorney. 
 Bay Area City Attorney Association: Prosecuting Environmental Crimes. 
 International Municipal Lawyer’s Association: The Role of the City               

Attorney; CEQA/NEPA and Climate Change; R.L.U.I.P.A. 
 Santa Clara County Bar Association: Prosecution of Environmental           

Crimes. 
 Los Angeles County Bar Association: New Environmental Legislation. 
 ALI-ABA: Defending CEQA Lawsuits. 
 
LAW SCHOOL University of Southern California Law School 

Juris Doctor Degree, May 1984. 
   Top 1/3 of Class. 
 
COLLEGE Whittier College 

Bachelor of Arts, May 1981. 
Major in Biology & Political Science completed in three years. 
Top 20% of Class. 
 
University of California at Davis 
Certificate in Land Use & Environmental Planning, June 1997. 
 
University of California at Santa Cruz 
Certificate in Hazardous Materials Management, November 2000. 



CRAIG LABADIE 

             
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

 
 
LAW OFFICES OF CRAIG LABADIE      Current 
Sole Practitioner 
 
City Attorney for the City of Albany.  Special Counsel to the City of Concord on issues 
pertaining to the reuse planning and property disposition process for the former 
Concord Naval Weapons Station, a closed military base. 
 

 

CITY OF CONCORD        2000 – 2011 
City Attorney 
 
Served as the chief legal advisor to City Council, Redevelopment Agency, Concord 
Naval Weapons Station Local Reuse Authority, City Boards and Commissions, and all 
City Departments.  Represented the City and oversaw outside litigation counsel in 
connection with liability claims and litigation, including municipal code enforcement 
litigation.  Subject matter areas included Brown Act, Public Records Act, Political 
Reform Act, municipal finance, public works, land use and environmental law, 
redevelopment, labor and employment, military base closure, law enforcement, and 
general municipal law. 
 
As an officer and President of the City Attorneys Department within the League of 
California Cities from 2004-07, I took an active leadership role in numerous educational 
and advocacy efforts for our membership.  Ongoing activities included planning of 
educational seminars, updating Municipal Law Handbook, and oversight of Legal 
Advocacy Committee.  Special initiatives as President included drafting of The People’s 
Business:  A Guide to the California Public Records Act, updating of Open and Public IV:  A 
Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, updating of guidebook on Proposition 218 (limits on 
local fees, taxes and assessments), and updating of guide to compliance with conflict of 
interest laws. 
 
 
MCDONOUGH, HOLLAND & ALLEN, Oakland, California  1989 – 2000 
Shareholder, Public Law Department  
 
City Attorney for the Cities of Mill Valley, Sausalito and Hercules 
Acting City Attorney for the City of Novato 
Special Counsel for numerous Bay Area cities 
 
Founding shareholder of Bay Area office for Sacramento-based firm representing local 



 -2- 

public agencies.  Areas of specialization included general municipal law, land use and 
environmental law, open government laws, eminent domain, annexations, development 
agreements, developer fees and exactions, inverse condemnation, public works, 
redevelopment, and municipal finance.   
 
Frequent lecturer and author on land use and environmental law topics for various U.C. 
Extension branches, as well as professional associations such as the League of California 
Cities, local city attorney associations, and professional organizations for urban 
planners. 
 
 
MCCUTCHEN, DOYLE, BROWN & ENERSEN, Walnut Creek  1988 – 1989 
Attorney, Land Use and Local Government Group 
 
Represented cities and private sector clients on land use matters and related litigation. 
Handled litigation involving land use initiatives, CEQA, development agreements, 
general plans and housing elements. Negotiated development agreements and 
provided advice concerning CEQA compliance. 
 
 
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES, Sacramento, California  1985 – 1988 
Legislative Attorney 
 
Represented cities before the California Legislature and state agencies on issues 
pertaining to CEQA, environmental law, hazardous materials, land use, housing, parks 
and recreation and solid waste.  Worked extensively with city council members, 
planning commissioners, city managers, city attorneys, and planning directors from 
cities throughout California in connection with the League’s legislative and educational 
efforts.  Provided staff support for League Policy Committees, City Attorneys 
Legislative Committee, and Legal Advocacy Committee. 
 

 

RUTAN & TUCKER, Costa Mesa, California    1982 – 1985 
Attorney, Public Law Department 
 
Assistant City Attorney, City of Laguna Beach 
Deputy City Attorney, Cities of San Clemente and Irvine 
 
Provided contract city attorney services and served as special litigation counsel to 
several Southern California cities.  Staffed meetings of City Councils and Planning 
Commissions. Represented cities in litigation concerning CEQA, land use, housing 
elements, and hazardous waste cleanup.  Assisted in preparing development 
agreements and redevelopment agreements. 
 



 -3- 

 
CALIFORNIA SUPREME COURT, Associate Justice Stanley Mosk  1981 – 1982 
Annual Law Clerk 
 
Researched and drafted Supreme Court opinions, evaluated cases presented for 
hearing, and supervised student externs.   Drafted manual for handling appellate writs. 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

 
 
LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES - CITY ATTORNEYS DEPARTMENT  

President (2006-07) 
Department Officer (2004-06) 
Chair, Legislative Committee (2002-04) 
President, Contra Costa County City Attorneys Association (2001) 

 President, Bay Area City Attorneys Association (1996) 
 Member, Municipal Law Handbook Committee (1993-95) 
 
 
CALIFORNIA STATE BAR 

 Public Law Section, Executive Committee (1989-92) 
    Editor, Public Law Journal  
 Member, Contra Costa County Bar Association (1988-Present) 
 
 
CONTINUING EDUCATION OF THE BAR 

 Chair, Continuing Education of the Bar Governing Committee (1998-99) 
 Member, Continuing Education of the Bar Governing Committee (1994-97) 
 Chair, Joint Advisory Committee on Continuing Education of the Bar (1993-94) 

Chair, Continuing Education of the Bar Subcommittee on Real Property Law 
(1991-93) 

 
 

LEGAL EDUCATION 

 
 
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS 

 Juris Doctor Degree (1981) 
 Order of the Coif  
 Editor, U.C. Davis Law Review 
 Best Brief Award, Environmental Moot Court Competition 
 



C:\Users\mlam\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\RQOCH3OC\OVERSIGHT BOARD LEGAL AGR TEMPLATE .doc 

Page 1 of 5 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on March __, 2012, by and between the City of 

__________________, a municipal corporation, acting as the Successor Agency to the 

___________City Redevelopment Agency ("CITY"), organized and existing under the provisions of AB 

x1 26, enacted June 29, 2011 (“Redevelopment Dissolution Act”), and _____________, an attorney 

licensed to practice law in the State of California (“ATTORNEY”). 

THE PARTIES ENTER THIS AGREEMENT based upon the following facts, understandings 

and intentions: 

City Attorney would provide legal services to the ______________ CITY OVERSIGHT 

BOARD (“OVERSIGHT BOARD”) as contemplated pursuant to the Redevelopment Dissolution Act as 

part of its staffing obligation, but because the City Attorney’s Office has a conflict of interest due to its 

representation of CITY as the Successor Agency, CITY is obtaining the services of special counsel to 

serve as the legal advisor for the OVERSIGHT BOARD; and  

CITY desires to contract with ATTORNEY and ATTORNEY desires to contract with CITY for 

provision of professional services as further described herein, upon the terms and conditions hereinafter 

set forth. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and promises of the 

parties herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Effective Date.  The effective date of this Agreement is March __, 2012. 

2. Scope of Services.  CITY engages ATTORNEY to provide legal advice and 

representation to OVERSIGHT BOARD regarding implementation of the Redevelopment Dissolution 

Act, including but not limited to advice regarding the powers and duties of the OVERSIGHT BOARD 

under the Act as well as compliance with the requirements of the Brown Act, Public Records Act and 

Political Reform Act in the performance of such powers and duties.  ATTORNEY shall provide both 

GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES and CLIENT SPECIFIC LEGAL SERVICES, which are defined in 

Section 4.   

3. Compensation.  ATTORNEY shall be compensated on hourly basis for services 



C:\Users\mlam\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\RQOCH3OC\OVERSIGHT BOARD LEGAL AGR TEMPLATE .doc 

Page 2 of 5 

rendered under Section 2, at the rate of $215 per hour.  Additional hourly rate for services are as 

follows: Partner Level Attorneys $215; Associate Level Attorneys $185; Law Clerks $75; and 

Paralegals $65. 

  Attorney shall be reimbursed for actual and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses such as mileage, 

photocopy charges, research-related charges, filing fees, telephone charges, and other costs related to 

representation. ATTORNEY may submit monthly statements for services rendered. Time will be billed 

in tenths of an hour (six-minute increments).  Travel time shall be charge and paid at fifty percent (50%) 

of the hourly billing rate.   

GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES are those legal services that pertain to generally shared or 

common issues among San Mateo County Oversight Boards where ATTORNEY’s research and advice 

will be generally applicable to all Oversight Boards ATTORNEY represents such as advice regarding the 

Brown Act, the Political Reform Act, Public Records Act, and general powers and duties of Oversight 

Boards. CLIENT SPECIFIC SERVICES are those legal services rendered specifically and exclusively to 

a particular Oversight Board at its direction such as appearing at Oversight Board to provide legal 

counsel during its meeting or researching and advising on an issue specifically pertaining to that Board. 

Further, for GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES applicable to all OVERSIGHT BOARD’s that 

ATTORNEY represents in San Mateo County, ATTORNEY shall divide the billing for such GENERAL 

LEGAL SERVICES equally among all OVERSIGHT BOARDS that ATTORNEY represents in San 

Mateo County. ATTORNEY shall separately bill each OVERSIGHT BOARD for work performed 

independently and at the direction of that particular OVERSIGHT BOARD. While the OVERSIGHT 

BOARD shall review the detailed bill of the ATTORNEY, CITY shall receive a summary bill of such 

services.  

It is intended that payment to ATTORNEY will be made by CITY acting as the Successor 

Agency within thirty (30) days after receipt of each invoice, subject to such work being in compliance 

both with the scope of services as set forth in this Agreement and within the budget established by the 

CITY for said services.  

4. Confidential Communications and Information.  CITY acting as the Successor 



C:\Users\mlam\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\RQOCH3OC\OVERSIGHT BOARD LEGAL AGR TEMPLATE .doc 

Page 3 of 5 

Agency is the contracting entity and the OVERSIGHT BOARD is the client for the purposes of 

confidential client communications. Confidential communications between the OVERSIGHT BOARD 

and ATTORNEY are not to be shared with CITY or CITY as the Successor Agency. All documents, 

communications or other information developed or received by or for ATTORNEY in performance of 

the Agreement are confidential and not to be disclosed to any person except as authorized by 

OVERSIGHT BOARD, or as required by law. 

5. Termination.  With the consent of the OVERSIGHT BOARD, CITY may terminate 

ATTORNEY’s employment at any time with or without cause and with no notice. However, CITY 

agrees to pay ATTORNEY for all legal services rendered by ATTORNEY up to the time of termination, 

plus all costs advanced and expenses incurred by ATTORNEY in the course of representing CITY. In 

the event of termination, ATTORNEY will promptly return CITY’s papers and property to it.  

6. Standard of Performance.  ATTORNEY represents to CITY that the services shall be 

performed in an expeditious manner and with the degree of skill and care that is in conformance with 

generally accepted professional standards prevailing at the time work is performed. 

7. Performance by Attorney.  ATTORNEY shall not employ other Attorneys or 

contractors without the prior written approval of the CITY.  Unless otherwise expressly agreed by the 

CITY, ATTORNEY’S representative shall remain responsible for the quality and timeliness of 

performance of the services, notwithstanding any permitted or approved delegation hereunder. 

8. Ownership and Maintenance of Documents.  All documents furnished by 

ATTORNEY pursuant to this AGREEMENT are instruments of ATTORNEY’S services in respect to 

any individual project.  They are not intended nor represented to be suitable for reuse by others on 

extensions of this project or on any other project.  Any reuse without specific written verification and 

adoption by ATTORNEY for the specific purposes intended will be at user’s sole risk and without 

liability or legal exposure and expenses to ATTORNEY, including attorney’s fees arising out of such 

unauthorized reuse.  ATTORNEY’S records pertaining to work performed under this Agreement shall 

be given to CITY at the completion of the work.   

9. Conflict of Interest.  ATTORNEY shall avoid any conflict of interest in the performance 



C:\Users\mlam\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\RQOCH3OC\OVERSIGHT BOARD LEGAL AGR TEMPLATE .doc 

Page 4 of 5 

of this Agreement.  ATTORNEY represents that the ATTORNEY has no existing conflict of interest in 

representing OVERSIGHT BOARD and will not acquire any such interest, which could interfere with 

the performance of services required under this Agreement.  

10. Independent Contractor.  In assuming and performing the services, ATTORNEY is an 

independent contractor and shall not be eligible for any benefits, which the CITY may provide its 

employees, except as expressly provided for in the AGREEMENT.  ATTORNEY shall have 

responsibility for and control over the means of providing services under this AGREEMENT. 

11. Malpractice Insurance.  Attorney shall maintain a current policy of errors and 

omissions insurance at all times. 

12. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, modified, or changed by the parties 

subject to mutual consent by execution of a written amendment executed by authorized representatives 

of CITY and ATTORNEY and as consented to by the OVERSIGHT BOARD. 

13. Compliance with Laws.  ATTORNEY shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, 

and local laws, rules, and regulations, and shall obtain all applicable licenses and permits for the conduct 

of its business and the performance of the services. 

14. Severability.  Each portion of this document is severable, so that if one portion is found 

to be legally invalid, the remaining portion shall remain in effect.   

15. Financial Records.  Records of ATTORNEY’S reimbursable expenses pertaining to this 

project covered by this AGREEMENT will be made available to OVERSIGHT BOARD and/or CITY if 

and when required. 

16. Notices.  All notices required hereunder shall be in writing and mailed postage prepaid 

by Certified or Registered mail, return receipt requested, or by personal delivery to the CITY'S address 

as shown below, or such other places as CITY or ATTORNEY may, from time to time, respectively, 

designate in a written notice given to the other.  Notice shall be deemed received three (3) days after the 

date of the mailing thereof or upon personal delivery. 
 

To CITY: 

 ___________________ 



C:\Users\mlam\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\RQOCH3OC\OVERSIGHT BOARD LEGAL AGR TEMPLATE .doc 

Page 5 of 5 

 ___________________ 

 ____________________ 

 ____________________ 

 ____________________ 
     

 [PICK ONE] 
To ATTORNEY:  
 
Gary Baum 
19925 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 100 
Cupertino, CA 95014-2358 
Phone:  (408) 833-6246 
Fax: (408) 540-1210 
E-mail: garybaumlaw@gmail.com 
 
Craig Labadie 
50 Tara Road 
Orinda, CA  94563 
Phone:  (925) 250-5424 
FAX:  (925) 253-0891 
E-mail:  labadielaw@gmail.com 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this AGREEMENT in one or more 

duplicate originals as of the date and year first written above. 
 

ATTORNEY  
CITY OF ___________________ 

By:_______________________  By:______________________________ 
Name:      Name:   
Title:   
Special Counsel    Title:   
Address:     Address:  
Telephone:     Telephone:  

CONSENTED TO: 

____________________________________ 

Chair, Oversight Board of _______________ 



This page intentionally left blank. 
 

























This page intentionally left blank. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 294 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
APPROVING A PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH THE CITY OF FOSTER CITY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,946,700 

FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

WHEREAS, the Foster City Community Development Agency ("Agency") has 
prepared a Community Development Plan ("Community Development Plan") for the 
Foster City Community Development Project Area One ("Project Area"), which 
results in the allocation of property taxes from the Project Area to the Agency ("Tax 
Increment") pursuant to Section 33670(b) of the California Community 
Redevelopment Law (Health & Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.) ("CRL") for 
purposes of redevelopment; and, 

WHEREAS, the intent of the Community Development Plan is, in part, to 
provide for the construction and installation of necessary public infrastructure and 
facilities and to facilitate the restoration and/or replacement of existing inadequate 
public facilities; to take all other necessary actions to implement the Community 
Development Plan for the Project Area; and to expend Tax Increment to accomplish 
the goals and objectives of the Community Development Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the Agency has adopted a Five-Year Implementation Plan for the 
Project Area ("Implementation Plan") establishing goals for elimination of blight, 
production of affordable housing, construction of infrastructure and public 
improvements and community and commercial revitalization; and, in order to 
implement the programs and activities associated with each goal, the Agency has 
committed redevelopment funds from the Project Area based on estimated available 
Tax Increment revenue and debt financing structures; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33220 of the CRL, certain public bodies, 
including the City of Foster City ("City"), may aid and cooperate in the planning, 
undertaking, construction, or operation of redevelopment projects; and, the Agency 
desires assistance and cooperation of the City to carry out the public infrastructure 
and improvement projects listed in Exhibit 1 to the Agreement (defined below) 
(collectively, "Projects"); and, the programs and activities associated with the Projects 
include but are not limited to acquisition of property, development of design criteria, 
design, planning, preparation of construction bid documents, financial analysis, 
financing, project administration and new construction or rehabilitation, as applicable; 
and, 



Resolution No. 294 

WHEREAS, the City is willing to aid and cooperate with the Agency to 
expeditiously implement the Projects in accordance with the Community 
Development Plan and Irhplementation .Plan on the condition that Agency pledge 
certain net available .property tax -increment to finance the Projects in this current 
fiscal year and forthcoming fiscal years; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33445(a) of. the CRL, the Agency may, with 
the consent of the City Council of the City, pay all or part of the value of the land for 
and the cost of the installation: and:.constrUction of any buildings, facilities, structures 
or other improvements which, are publicly owned and located inside or contiguous to 
a project area upon a determination by the City Council that such building, facilities, 
structures or other improvements 'are of benefit to the project area by helping to 
eliminate blight within the piOjectarea, that no other reasonable means of financing 
the acquisition of the land or installation or construction of such buildings, facilities, 
structures or other improvements that are publicly owned are available to the 
community, and that the payment of funds for the acquisition of the land or 
installation or construction of the building, facilities, structure or other improvements 
that are publicly owned is consistent with the implementation plan adopted by the 
Agency pursuant to Section 33490 of the CRL; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33445(c) of the CRL, when the value of the 
land or the installation and construction of a building, facility, structure, or other 
improvement that is publicly owned, or both, has been, or will be, paid or provided for 
initially by the City, the Agency may enter into a contract with the City under which 
the Agency agrees to reimburse the City for all or part of the value of the land or all or 
a part of the cost of the building, facility, structure or other improvement that is 
publicly owned; and, 

WHEREAS, the Agency and City Council have prepared and wish to enter 
into a Public Improvements Reimbursement Agreement ("Agreement") to provide for 
City's development and construction of the Projects within or contiguous to the 
Project Area and Agency's reimbursement of City for the costs of the Projects; and, 

WHEREAS, a project Final Environmental Impact Report was prepared and 
certified on the Community Development Plan ("Final EIR") in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), which included analysis of the 
Projects on a programmatic level; and, 

WHEREAS, at this time there are no preliminary drawings, plans or other 
sufficient information to enable a meaningful environmental assessment of the 
specific Projects, therefore, the Agreement provides that the commitment of funds to 
and commencement of the specific projects set forth therein shall be subject to 
completion of additional environmental review and analysis, as required by CEQA. 



Resolution No. 294 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Foster City Community 
Development Agency, that: 

Section 1. 	Agency hereby finds and determines that the provision of the 
proposed Projects are of benefit to the Project Area as they will help to eliminate 
blight within the Project Area, that no other reasonable means of financing the 
Projects is available to the community; and that-the payment of funds for the Projects 
is consistent with the Agency's Implementation Plan for the Project Area adopted 
pursuant to Section 33490 of the CRL. These findings and determinations are 
based upon the following facts: 

A. All the Projects are eiter located within or contiguous to the Project Area and will 
assist in eliminating the following blight conditions: capital improvement projects 
are needed .  in Project- Area One to eliminate- blight conditions resulting from 
current and projected growth in the Area and the insufficiency of the existing 
facilities to meet the current and projected needs of the Area and the community, 
particularly in the area of park infrastructure improvements. 

B. Although the City is able to aid and assist the Agency by undertaking the 
Projects, the City lacks the resources necessary to fund the Projects from the 
General Fund, and other potential sources of funds are no longer available or are 
inadequate. The City's General Fund continues to be eroded by increased 
insurance and liability costs and, State mandated programs which are not fully 
funded by the State. -Further there has been a marked decline in tax revenues 
and the availability of State and federal grants over the past several years. 

C. The Implementation Plan for the Project Area contains the specific goals and 
objectives of the Agency for the Project Area, the specific programs, including 
potential projects, and estimated expenditures proposed to be made during the 
five year period covered by the Implementation Plan, and an explanation of how 
the goals and objectives, programs, and expenditures will eliminate blight within 
the Project Area. The Projects are consistent with the Implementation Plan, as 
the goals and prOgrams provide for the elimination of inadequate public 
improvements and the provision of public infrastructure of benefit to the Project 
Area. 

Section 2. 	The Agency hereby approves the Public Improvements 
Reimbursement Agreement and hereby authorizes and directs the Chair of the 
Agency to execute the Agreement on behalf of the Agency, subject to any minor, 
technical or clarifying changes that may be approved by the Agency's counsel. The 
Agency hereby further authorizes and directs the Executive Director to take all 
actions and execute all documents as necessary to carry out the Agreement and 
accomplish the acquisition of land, installation and construction of the Projects, and 
the Agency's reimbursement of City for the costs of the Projects as provided for in 
the Agreement. 



LINDA KOELLING, C Al 

ATTEST: 

DORIS L. PALMER, SECRETARY 

Resolution No. 294 

Section 3. 	Funds in the initial amount of $1,600,000, plus such additional 
amounts as needed to fund the Projects provided that the total funds transferred 
does not exceed $2,946,700, are authorized to be transferred from the Agency's 
Project Area One General Fund to the City in accordance with the terms of the 
Agreement.. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED äs a resolution of the Board of Directors of the 
Foster City Community Development Agency at the Regular Meeting held on the 7 th  
day of February, 2011 by the following vote: 

AYES: 	Members Bronitsky, Frisella, Kiesel, and Chair Koelling 

NOES: 	'Member 14ykciff 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 



































































Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

General  Information

Members of the Governing Body

Koelling Linda

Bronitsky Charles

Frisella Pam

Kiesel Art

Wykoff Rick

Agency Officials

Hardy James C (650) 286-3222

Toler Steve (650) 286-3214

Palmer Doris (650) 286-3253

Report Prepared By

Toler

Steve

(650) 286-3214

Street 610 Foster City Blvd

City Foster City

State CA

Zip Code 94404-2222

Independent Auditor

Marcum LLP

Badawi

Ahmed

(925) 482-2118

101 Montgomery St, Suite 1900

San Francisco

CA

94104-

Fiscal Year 2011

Chairperson

Last Name First Name
Middle 
Initial

Member 
Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Executive Director

Fiscal Officer

Secretary

Last Name First Name Middle 
Initial Phone 

Last 

First 

Middle Initial

Phone

Mailing Address

Street 1 610 Foster City Blvd

Street 2

City Foster City State CA Zip 94404-2222

Phone (650) 286-3200

Firm Name

Is Address Changed?

General  Information Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Achievement Information (Unaudited)

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Please provide a description of the agency's 
activities/accomplishments during the past 
year. 

Commercial Buildings

Industrial Buildings

Public Buildings

Other Buildings

Total Square Footage 0 0

Enter the Number of Jobs Created 
from the Activities of the Agency  

Types Completed

(Please be specific, as this information will be 
the basis for possible inclusion in the 
publication.)

Square Footage Completed

New 
Construction

Rehabilitated

Enter the amount of square 
footage completed this year by 
building type and segregated by 
new or rehabilitated construction.

A=Utilities  B=Recreation  C=Landscaping  D=Sewer/ Storm  E=Streets/ Roads  
F=Bus/Transit

    of the Activities of the Redevelopment Agency.

Indicate Only Those Achievements Completed During the Fiscal Year of this Report as a Direct Result

Affordable Housing Strategic Plan - established and implemented five programs to 
address the affordable housing requirements of the City and the Agency:

  1.  Existing Unit Purchase Program - 6 living units are in the Agency's inventory 
and are rented to very-low-income families.
  2.  First-Time Homebuyer Assistance - a total of 29 loans from $50,000 to $75,000 
have been issued, with several homebuyers pre-qualified that are looking for 
homes to purchase.
  3.  New Project Development - A development and disposition agreement was 
completed with a developer that will add 730 housing units to the City, of which 146 
will be affordable housing units which will be constructed in 2012.  In addition, the 
City is in negotiations with another developer for its vacant 15-acre site that has the 
potential to provide over 400 housing units, of which nearly 80 will be dedicated to 
low- to moderate-income families.
  4.  Rental Assistance - rent assistance is provided to very-low-income families in 
various multi-family dwelling units in the City.
  5.  Rehabilitation Loan Program - loans from prior years continue to be services 
that allowed for rehabilition of various residential properties serving low income 
families.

The Agency was required to pay nearly $1.2 million in a supplemental ERAF 
payment to the State of California. These funds were taken from the Marlin Cove 
Project Area, thereby reducing funding for  affordable housing needs in the project 
area and the City.

Activity Report

Achievement Information (Unaudited) Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Achievement Information (Unaudited)

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Achievement Information (Unaudited) Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Audit Information

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Was the Report Prepared from Audited Financial Data, 
and Did You Submit a Copy of the Audit?

Yes

Indicate Financial Audit Opinion Unqualified

If Financial Audit is not yet Completed, What is the 
Expected Completion Date?

If the Audit Opinion was Other than Unqualified, State 
Briefly the Reason Given

Was a Compliance Audit Performed in Accordance with 
Health and Safety Code Section 33080.1 and the State 
Controller's Guidelines for Compliance Audits, and Did 
You Submit a Copy of the Audit?

Yes

Indicate Compliance Audit Opinion Unqualified

If Compliance Audit is not yet Completed, What is the 
Expected Completion Date?

If compliance opinion includes exceptions, 
state the areas of non-compliance, and 
describe the agency's efforts to correct.

Audit Information Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Project Area Report

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Foster City Project AreaFiscal Year 2011

Please Provide a Brief Description of 
the Activities for this Project Area 
During the Reporting Year.

Date Project Area was Established 11/30/1981(MM-DD-YY)

Enter Code for Type of Project Area Report P

Most Recent Date Project Area was Amended 9/22/2005

Did this Amendment Add New Territory? No

Most Recent Date Project Area was Merged

Established Time Limit :

Repayment of Indebtedness 2016(Year Only)

Effectiveness of Plan 2016(Year Only)

New Indebtedness 2004(Year Only)

Size of Project Area in Acres 1,208

Percentage of Land Vacant at the Inception of the Project Area 58.0
Health and Safety Code Section 33320.1   (xx.x%)

Percentage of Land Developed at the Inception of the Project Area 42.0
Health and Safety Code Section 33320.1  (xx.x%)

Objectives of the Project Area as Set Forth in the Project Area Plan RICP
(Enter the Appropriate Code(s) in Sequence as Shown)

P = Standard Project Area Report   

YesWill this Project Area be Carried Forward to Next Year?

YesForwarded from Prior Year ?

L = Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund      M = Mortgage Revenue Bond Program
O = Other Miscellaneous Funds or Programs

A = Administrative Fund 

R = Residential    I = Industrial    C = Commercial    P = Public    O = Other

S = Proposed (Survey) Project Area

Does the Plan Include Tax Increment Provisions? Yes

This project area, known as Project 
Area One, reached its tax increment 
cap in FY 2010-2011, five years prior 
to the original estimated timeline 
which is a testament to the growth in 
assessed valuation and, thus, the 
economic vitality within the project 
area. No further tax increment will be 
collected in this project area, and 
instead those funds will be 
redistributed to the taxing entities, 
including school districts. The Project 
Area continues to fund affordable 
housing initiatives, and remaining 
funding is intended to be used to 
support affordable housing 
obligations and public improvements 
as originally anticipated in the 
Project Area's redeevelopment plan.

Activity Report

Project Area Report Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Project Area Report

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project AreaFiscal Year 2011

Please Provide a Brief Description of 
the Activities for this Project Area 
During the Reporting Year.

Date Project Area was Established 1/4/1999(MM-DD-YY)

Enter Code for Type of Project Area Report P

Most Recent Date Project Area was Amended 9/22/2005

Did this Amendment Add New Territory? No

Most Recent Date Project Area was Merged

Established Time Limit :

Repayment of Indebtedness 2044(Year Only)

Effectiveness of Plan 2029(Year Only)

New Indebtedness 2019(Year Only)

Size of Project Area in Acres 4

Percentage of Land Vacant at the Inception of the Project Area 0.0
Health and Safety Code Section 33320.1   (xx.x%)

Percentage of Land Developed at the Inception of the Project Area 100.0
Health and Safety Code Section 33320.1  (xx.x%)

Objectives of the Project Area as Set Forth in the Project Area Plan R
(Enter the Appropriate Code(s) in Sequence as Shown)

P = Standard Project Area Report   

YesWill this Project Area be Carried Forward to Next Year?

YesForwarded from Prior Year ?

L = Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund      M = Mortgage Revenue Bond Program
O = Other Miscellaneous Funds or Programs

A = Administrative Fund 

R = Residential    I = Industrial    C = Commercial    P = Public    O = Other

S = Proposed (Survey) Project Area

Does the Plan Include Tax Increment Provisions? Yes

The Hillsdale/Gull Project Area 
continues to provide affordable 
housing subsidies for the Miramar 
Apartment complex that was created 
through the redevelopment efforts of 
this project area.

Activity Report

Project Area Report Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Project Area Report

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project AreaFiscal Year 2011

Please Provide a Brief Description of 
the Activities for this Project Area 
During the Reporting Year.

Date Project Area was Established 1/4/1999(MM-DD-YY)

Enter Code for Type of Project Area Report P

Most Recent Date Project Area was Amended 9/22/2005

Did this Amendment Add New Territory? No

Most Recent Date Project Area was Merged

Established Time Limit :

Repayment of Indebtedness 2044(Year Only)

Effectiveness of Plan 2029(Year Only)

New Indebtedness 2019(Year Only)

Size of Project Area in Acres 12

Percentage of Land Vacant at the Inception of the Project Area 0.0
Health and Safety Code Section 33320.1   (xx.x%)

Percentage of Land Developed at the Inception of the Project Area 100.0
Health and Safety Code Section 33320.1  (xx.x%)

Objectives of the Project Area as Set Forth in the Project Area Plan RC
(Enter the Appropriate Code(s) in Sequence as Shown)

P = Standard Project Area Report   

YesWill this Project Area be Carried Forward to Next Year?

YesForwarded from Prior Year ?

L = Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund      M = Mortgage Revenue Bond Program
O = Other Miscellaneous Funds or Programs

A = Administrative Fund 

R = Residential    I = Industrial    C = Commercial    P = Public    O = Other

S = Proposed (Survey) Project Area

Does the Plan Include Tax Increment Provisions? Yes

The Marlin Cove Project Area 
continues to provide affordable 
housing subsidies to the Marlin Cove 
apartment complex that was created 
in this mixed-use development area. 
The shopping center which was 
redeveloped in this project area 
continues to thrive with near 100% 
occupancy and has become one of 
the two busiest shopping areas in 
Foster City.

Activity Report

Project Area Report Page 3 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report 

Assessed Valuation Data

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Frozen Base Assessed Valuation 29,174,167

Increment Assessed Valuation 1,817,984,658

Total Assessed Valuation 1,847,158,825

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area

Assessed Valuation Data Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report 

Assessed Valuation Data

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Frozen Base Assessed Valuation 3,252,476

Increment Assessed Valuation 11,791,267

Total Assessed Valuation 15,043,743

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project Area

Assessed Valuation Data Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report 

Assessed Valuation Data

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Frozen Base Assessed Valuation 10,238,357

Increment Assessed Valuation 61,268,331

Total Assessed Valuation 71,506,688

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project Area

Assessed Valuation Data Page 3 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report
Pass-Through / School District Assistance

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

H & S Code  
Section 33401

H & S Code  
Section 33676

H & S Code  
Section 33607

Total H & S Code  
Section 33445

H & S Code  
Section 33445.5

Amounts Paid To Taxing 
Agencies Pursuant To:

Tax Increment Pass Through Detail Other Payments

Fiscal Year

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area

2011

County 2,929,262 $2,929,262

Cities $0

School Districts 70,184 $70,184

Community College Districts 475,391 134,862 $610,253

Special Districts 12,661 $12,661

Total Paid to Taxing 
Agencies

$2,929,262 $475,391 $217,707 $3,622,360 $0 $0

Net Amount to Agency $5,849,057

Gross Tax Increment 
Generated

9,471,417

Pass-Through / School District Assistance Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report
Pass-Through / School District Assistance

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

H & S Code  
Section 33401

H & S Code  
Section 33676

H & S Code  
Section 33607

Total H & S Code  
Section 33445

H & S Code  
Section 33445.5

Amounts Paid To Taxing 
Agencies Pursuant To:

Tax Increment Pass Through Detail Other Payments

Fiscal Year

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project Area

2011

County 6,593 $6,593

Cities $0

School Districts 15,848 $15,848

Community College Districts 3,281 $3,281

Special Districts 1,066 $1,066

Total Paid to Taxing 
Agencies

$0 $0 $26,788 $26,788 $0 $0

Net Amount to Agency $126,027

Gross Tax Increment 
Generated

152,815

Pass-Through / School District Assistance Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report
Pass-Through / School District Assistance

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

H & S Code  
Section 33401

H & S Code  
Section 33676

H & S Code  
Section 33607

Total H & S Code  
Section 33445

H & S Code  
Section 33445.5

Amounts Paid To Taxing 
Agencies Pursuant To:

Tax Increment Pass Through Detail Other Payments

Fiscal Year

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project Area

2011

County 30,182 $30,182

Cities $0

School Districts 63,529 $63,529

Community College Districts 11,554 $11,554

Special Districts 7,224 $7,224

Total Paid to Taxing 
Agencies

$0 $0 $112,489 $112,489 $0 $0

Net Amount to Agency $604,953

Gross Tax Increment 
Generated

717,442

Pass-Through / School District Assistance Page 3 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Summary of the Statement of Indebtedness - Project Area

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Project Area Name

Tax Allocation Bond Debt

Revenue Bonds

Other Long Term Debt

City/County Debt

Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund

Other

Total $0

Available Revenues

Net Tax Increment Requirements $0

Foster City Project Area

Summary of the Statement of Indebtedness - Project Area Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Summary of the Statement of Indebtedness - Project Area

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Project Area Name

Tax Allocation Bond Debt

Revenue Bonds

Other Long Term Debt

City/County Debt 2,205,978

Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund 1,245,394

Other 3,963,410

Total $7,414,782

Available Revenues 451,077

Net Tax Increment Requirements $6,963,705

Hillsdale/Gull Project Area

Summary of the Statement of Indebtedness - Project Area Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Summary of the Statement of Indebtedness - Project Area

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Project Area Name

Tax Allocation Bond Debt

Revenue Bonds

Other Long Term Debt

City/County Debt 1,693,398

Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund 2,323,655

Other 10,955,041

Total $14,972,094

Available Revenues 77,438

Net Tax Increment Requirements $14,894,656

Marlin Cove Project Area

Summary of the Statement of Indebtedness - Project Area Page 3 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

Agency Long-Term Debt

Bond Type

Year of Authorization 1981

Principal Amount Authorized 31,211,618

Principal Amount Issued 31,211,618

Purpose of Issue Redevelopment Activities

Maturity Date Beginning Year 1981

Maturity Date Ending Year 2012

Principal Amount Unmatured Beginning of Fiscal Year $1,115,697

Adjustment Made During Year

Adjustment Explanation

Interest Added to Principal

Principal Amount Issued During Fiscal Year

Principal Amount Matured During Fiscal Year 1,115,697

Principal Amount Defeased During Fiscal Year

Principal Amount Unmatured End of Fiscal Year $0

Principal Amount In Default

Interest In Default

City/County Debt

YesForward from Prior Year

Bond Types Allowed:

Tax Allocation Bonds; Revenue Bonds; Certificates of Participation; Tax Allocation Notes; Financing Authority Bonds; City/County Debt; US;State; 
Loans; Lease Obligations; Notes; Deferred Pass-Throughs; Deferred Compensation; Other

Agency Long-Term Debt Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Revenues

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

Funds

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

Funds
                       Total

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

Tax Increment Gross 6,922,630 2,548,787 $9,471,417

Special Supplemental Subvention $0

Property Assessments $0

Sales and Use Tax $0

Transient Occupancy Tax $0

Interest Income 108,003 199,986 $307,989

Rental Income 66,241 $66,241

Lease Income $0

Sale of Real Estate $0

Gain on Land Held for Resale $0

Federal Grants $0

Grants from Other Agencies $0

Bond Administrative Fees $0

Other Revenues 5,555 $5,555

Total Revenues $7,030,633 $0 $2,820,569 $0 $9,851,202

(Include All Apportionments)

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Revenues Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Revenues

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

Funds

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

Funds
                       Total

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

Tax Increment Gross 122,252 30,563 $152,815

Special Supplemental Subvention $0

Property Assessments $0

Sales and Use Tax $0

Transient Occupancy Tax $0

Interest Income 6,262 $6,262

Rental Income $0

Lease Income $0

Sale of Real Estate $0

Gain on Land Held for Resale $0

Federal Grants $0

Grants from Other Agencies $0

Bond Administrative Fees $0

Other Revenues $0

Total Revenues $128,514 $0 $30,563 $0 $159,077

(Include All Apportionments)

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Revenues Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Revenues

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

Funds

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

Funds
                       Total

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

Tax Increment Gross 573,954 143,488 $717,442

Special Supplemental Subvention $0

Property Assessments $0

Sales and Use Tax $0

Transient Occupancy Tax $0

Interest Income 12,390 $12,390

Rental Income $0

Lease Income $0

Sale of Real Estate $0

Gain on Land Held for Resale $0

Federal Grants $0

Grants from Other Agencies $0

Bond Administrative Fees $0

Other Revenues $0

Total Revenues $586,344 $0 $143,488 $0 $729,832

(Include All Apportionments)

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Revenues Page 3 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area

Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Administration Costs 384,386 257,314 $641,700

Professional Services 109,283 75,219 $184,502

Planning, Survey, and Design $0

Real Estate Purchases $0

Acquisition Expense $0

Operation of Acquired Property $0

Relocation Costs $0

Relocation Payments $0

Site Clearance Costs $0

Project Improvement / Construction Costs $0

Disposal Costs $0

Loss on Disposition of Land Held for 
Resale

$0

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area

Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Decline in Value of Land Held for Resale $0

Rehabilitation Costs $0

Rehabilitation Grants $0

Interest Expense 156,685 $156,685

Fixed Asset Acquisitions $0

Subsidies to Low and Moderate Income 
Housing

422,526 $422,526

Debt Issuance Costs $0

Other Expenditures Including Pass-
Through Payment(s)

1,160,099 $1,160,099

Debt Principal Payments:

Tax Allocation Bonds and Notes $0

Revenue Bonds, Certificates of 
Participation, Financing Authority 
Bonds

$0

City/County Advances and Loans 1,115,697 $1,115,697

All Other Long-Term Debt $0

Total Expenditures $2,926,150 $0 $755,059 $0 $3,681,209

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues over 
(under) Expenditures

$4,104,483 $0 $2,065,510 $0 $6,169,993

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project Area

Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Administration Costs 33,082 125,412 $158,494

Professional Services 6,941 8,117 $15,058

Planning, Survey, and Design $0

Real Estate Purchases $0

Acquisition Expense $0

Operation of Acquired Property $0

Relocation Costs $0

Relocation Payments $0

Site Clearance Costs $0

Project Improvement / Construction Costs $0

Disposal Costs $0

Loss on Disposition of Land Held for 
Resale

$0

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures Page 3 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project Area

Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Decline in Value of Land Held for Resale $0

Rehabilitation Costs $0

Rehabilitation Grants $0

Interest Expense $0

Fixed Asset Acquisitions $0

Subsidies to Low and Moderate Income 
Housing

177,187 $177,187

Debt Issuance Costs $0

Other Expenditures Including Pass-
Through Payment(s)

26,788 $26,788

Debt Principal Payments:

Tax Allocation Bonds and Notes $0

Revenue Bonds, Certificates of 
Participation, Financing Authority 
Bonds

$0

City/County Advances and Loans $0

All Other Long-Term Debt $0

Total Expenditures $66,811 $0 $310,716 $0 $377,527

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues over 
(under) Expenditures

$61,703 $0 ($280,153) $0 ($218,450)

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures Page 4 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project Area

Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Administration Costs 33,082 125,411 $158,493

Professional Services 131,016 5,900 $136,916

Planning, Survey, and Design $0

Real Estate Purchases $0

Acquisition Expense $0

Operation of Acquired Property $0

Relocation Costs $0

Relocation Payments $0

Site Clearance Costs $0

Project Improvement / Construction Costs $0

Disposal Costs $0

Loss on Disposition of Land Held for 
Resale

$0

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures Page 5 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project Area

Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Decline in Value of Land Held for Resale $0

Rehabilitation Costs $0

Rehabilitation Grants $0

Interest Expense $0

Fixed Asset Acquisitions $0

Subsidies to Low and Moderate Income 
Housing

313,314 $313,314

Debt Issuance Costs $0

Other Expenditures Including Pass-
Through Payment(s)

1,161,095 $1,161,095

Debt Principal Payments:

Tax Allocation Bonds and Notes $0

Revenue Bonds, Certificates of 
Participation, Financing Authority 
Bonds

$0

City/County Advances and Loans $0

All Other Long-Term Debt $0

Total Expenditures $1,325,193 $0 $444,625 $0 $1,769,818

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues over 
(under) Expenditures

($738,849) $0 ($301,137) $0 ($1,039,986)

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Expenditures Page 6 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Proceeds of Long-Term Debt $0

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds $0

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent $0

Advances from City/County $0

Sale of Fixed Assets $0

Miscellaneous Financing Sources (Uses) -3,113,935 -19,072,011 ($22,185,946)

Operating Transfers In $0

Tax Increment Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out 2,103,889 $2,103,889

Tax Increment Transfers Out $0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ($3,113,935) $0 ($21,175,900) $0 ($24,289,835)

(To the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund)

$0

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Foster City Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Financing Sources over 
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

$990,548 $0 ($19,110,390) $0 ($18,119,842)

Equity, Beginning of Period ($990,548) $0 $19,110,390 $0 $18,119,842

Prior Period Adjustments $0

Residual Equity Transfers $0

Equity, End of Period $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Proceeds of Long-Term Debt $0

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds $0

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent $0

Advances from City/County $0

Sale of Fixed Assets $0

Miscellaneous Financing Sources (Uses) $0

Operating Transfers In 715,890 $715,890

Tax Increment Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out $0

Tax Increment Transfers Out $0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $0 $0 $715,890 $0 $715,890

(To the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund)

$0

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources Page 3 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Hillsdale/Gull Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Financing Sources over 
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

$61,703 $0 $435,737 $0 $497,440

Equity, Beginning of Period $389,374 $0 ($435,737) $0 ($46,363)

Prior Period Adjustments $0

Residual Equity Transfers $0

Equity, End of Period $451,077 $0 $0 $0 $451,077

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources Page 4 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Proceeds of Long-Term Debt $0

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds $0

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent $0

Advances from City/County $0

Sale of Fixed Assets $0

Miscellaneous Financing Sources (Uses) $0

Operating Transfers In 1,387,999 $1,387,999

Tax Increment Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out $0

Tax Increment Transfers Out $0

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $0 $0 $1,387,999 $0 $1,387,999

(To the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund)

$0

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources Page 5 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Project Area Name Marlin Cove Project Area
Fiscal Year 2011

  Capital Project 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

 Special 
Revenue/Other 

                           
Total

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Financing Sources over 
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

($738,849) $0 $1,086,862 $0 $348,013

Equity, Beginning of Period $805,518 $0 ($1,086,862) $0 ($281,344)

Prior Period Adjustments $0

Residual Equity Transfers $0

Equity, End of Period $66,669 $0 $0 $0 $66,669

Statement of Income and Expenditures - Other Financing Sources Page 6 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Balance Sheet - Assets and Other Debits

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

 Capital  Projects 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

Funds

Special 
Revenue/Other 

Funds
General Long-

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets
                       

Total
Fiscal Year 2011

Assets and Other Debits

Cash and Imprest Cash 520,147 501,691 $1,021,838

Cash with Fiscal Agent $0

Tax Increments Receivable $0

Accounts Receivable $0

Accrued Interest Receivable $0

Loans Receivable $0

Contracts Receivable $0

Lease Payments Receivable $0

Unearned Finance Charge $0

Due from Capital Projects Fund $0

Due from Debt Service Fund $0

Due from Low/Moderate 
Income Housing Fund

$0

Due from Special 
Revenue/Other Funds

$0

Balance Sheet - Assets and Other Debits Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Balance Sheet - Assets and Other Debits

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

 Capital  Projects 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

Funds

Special 
Revenue/Other 

Funds
General Long-

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets
                       

Total
Fiscal Year 2011

Investments $0

Other Assets $0

Investments: Land Held for 
Resale

$0

Allowance for Decline In 
Value of Land Held for Resale

$0

Fixed Assets: Land, 
Structures, and Improvements

$0

Equipment $0

Amount Available In Debt 
Service Fund

$0

Amount to be Provided for 
Payment of Long-Term Debt

$0

Total Assets and Other 
Debits

$520,147 $0 $501,691 $0 $0 $0 $1,021,838

(Must Equal Total Liabilities, 
Other Credits, and Equities)

Balance Sheet - Assets and Other Debits Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Other Credits

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Capital Projects 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

Funds

Special 
Revenue/Other 

Funds
General Long-

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets
                 

TotalFiscal Year 2011

Accounts Payable 2,301 501,691 $503,992
Interest Payable $0

Tax Anticipation Notes Payable $0

Loans Payable $0

Other Liabilities 100 $100

Due to Capital Projects Fund $0

Due to Debt Service Fund $0

Due to Low/Moderate 
Income Housing Fund

$0

Due to Special 
Revenue/Other Funds

$0

Tax Allocation Bonds Payable $0

Lease Revenue, Certificates of 
Participation Payable, 
Financing Authority Bonds

All Other Long-Term Debt $0

Total Liabilities and Other 
Credits                          

$2,401 $0 $501,691 $0 $0 $504,092

Liabilities and Other Credits

$0

Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Other Credits Page 1 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report

Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Other Credits

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Capital Projects 
Funds

 Debt Service 
Funds

 Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 

Funds

Special 
Revenue/Other 

Funds
General Long-

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets
                 

TotalFiscal Year 2011

Equities

Investment In General Fixed 
Assets

$0

Fund Balance Reserved 0 $0

Fund Balance  
Unreserved-Designated

517,746 $517,746

Fund Balance      
Unreserved-Undesignated

$0

Total Equities $517,746 $0 $0 $0 $0 $517,746

Total Liabilities, 
Other Credits,  and 
Equities

$520,147 $0 $501,691 $0 $0 $0 $1,021,838

Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Other Credits Page 2 12/13/2011



Redevelopment Agencies Financial Transactions Report 
Statement of Income and Expenditures -  Summary, Combined Transfers In/Out

The Community Development Agency Of The City Of Foster City

Fiscal Year 2011

Operating Transfers In $2,103,889

Tax Increment Transfers In $0

Operating Transfers Out $2,103,889

Tax Increment Transfers Out $0

Statement of Income and Expenditures -  Summary, 
Combined Transfers In/Out

Page 1 12/13/2011



































RESOLUTION NO.  284  

A RESOLUTION OF THE FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY BUDGET 

FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

WHEREAS, Agency staff has prepared a preliminary -budget for fiscal year 
2010-2011, a copy of which has heretofore been submitted to the Community 
Development Agency of the City of Foster City (the "Agency"). Said budget provides 
for the amount, as shown in the attached Exhibit A, to be expended by the Agency in 
the carrying out of the Plan for the Foster City Community Development Project One, 
Marlin Cove, and the Hillsdale / Gull Project Areas during said period; and, 

WHEREAS, the Agency has adopted Redevelopment Plans (the 
"Redevelopment Plan") for the Foster City Community Development Project Area, 
the Marlin Cove Redevelopment Project, and the Hillsdale / Gull Redevelopment 
Project (the "Project") which includes provisions for the allocation of taxes from the 
Project Area to the Agency for the purposes of redevelopment; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 3334.2 of the California Community Redevelopment Law 
(Health and Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.) requires that not less than twenty 
percent (20%) of all taxes so allocated be used by the Agency for the purpose of 
increasing, improving, and preserving the community's supply of low- and moderate-
income housing available at affordable housing cost; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 33334.2(g) of the Community Redevelopment Law 
provides that the Agency may use such funds outside the Project Area if a finding is 
made by resolution of the Agency and the City Council that such use will be of benefit 
to the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Foster City Community 
Development Agency does hereby find that the budget amounts on the attached 
Exhibit A for Fiscal Year 2010-2011 are necessary and appropriate expenditures to 
carry on the operational activities of the Community Development Agency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the use of taxes 
allocated from the Project Area for the purpose of increasing, improving and 
preserving the community's supply of low- and moderate-income housing available at 
affordable housing cost outside the Project Area will be of benefit to the Project. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed 
planning and administrative costs proposed for the Housing Funds are -not only 
necessary, but proportionate to the amount proposed for actual housing assistance 
activities, as described in the memo to the Agency Executive Director dated June 10, 
2010. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS DETERMINED AND ORDERED, as follows: 

1. The Community Development Agency finds that the use of housing 
fund revenue for planning and administrative costs is necessary for the 
production, improvement and preservation of low- and moderate-
income housing. 

2. The budget for fiscal year 2010-2011 in the form of the Exhibit A, 
attached hereto, is hereby approved and adopted as the budget for 
this Agency for said fiscal year. 

3. The Executive Director shall transmit to the City a copy of the 
approved budget. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED as a resolution of the Foster City Community 
Development Agency at the regular meeting held on the 21st day of June, 2010, by 
the following vote: 

AYES: 	Members Bronitsky, Frisella, Kiesel, Koelling, and Chair Wykoff 

NOES: 	None 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

RI VVYKOF , HA' 

ATTEST: 

DORIS L. PALMER, SECRETARY 



CDA Exhibit A 

Community Development Agency 
Summary of Resources and Requirements by Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Loan 
Available 	Estimated 	 Operating 	Capital 	Repayment to 	Total 	: ii: Available 

Fund 	 Julyl, 2010 : 	Revenues 	Transfers In 	Transfers Out , Total Available 	Expenditures 	Expenditures 	City (2) 	Requirements: 	June 30, 2011  

311 	General Fund - Project 1 (1) 	 $ 	3,640,000 	$ 	7,359,000 	$ 	- 	$ 5,639,604 	$ ',5,359,396 	$ 	1,294,997 	$ 	- 	$ 1,227,676 	$ 	2,522,673 	$ 	2;836,723 

312 	Housing Fund - Project 1 	 $ 	9,674,000 	$ 	2,538,000 	$ 5.639,604 	$ 	645,016 	$ 17,206,588 	$ 	1,683,183 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	$ 	1,683,183 	$ ii15,523,405 

316 	Project Redevelopment Fund -- CIP 	' $:::!:: 	405 000 , 	$ 	6,000 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	$ 	411,0007 	$ 	- 	 $ 	- 	 $ 	411,000 

	

Total Project 1 	$ 13,719,000 	$ 	9,903,000 	$ 5,639,604 	$ 6,284,620 	$ 22,976,984, 	$ 	2,978,180 	$ 	- 	$  1,227,676 	$ ..1 4,205,856 	$ 	18;771,128  

317 	General Fund - Marlin Cove 	 $ 	1,093,000 	$ 	588,000 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	1',681 ,,00707 $ 	1,483,652 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	$ 	1,483,02 	197,348' 

	

.„ 	 ,., 
- 	 , 	 - 	 - 	• 318 	Housing Fund - Marlin Cove 	 ::$ ,:::: 	: 	:: - ,:::: : 	$ 	147,000 	$ 	353,705 	$ 	 500 705 	$ 	500,705 	$ 	 $ 	 $ 	500 705  

	

Total Marlin Cove :::$ 	1,093 ;000:: $ 	735,000 , $ 	353,705 	$ 	- 	'$ :,.2;181,705 . : 	$ 	1,984,357 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	$ 	1 ; 984,357: 	197,348  

319 	General Fund - Hillsdale/Gull 	 $ 	406,000 	$ 	150,000 	$ 	- - 	$ 	- 	$ 	556,000 	$ 	76,052 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	, i7,6 ;052 	'479;948 

320 	Housing Fund - Hillsdale/Gull 	 $ 	38,000 	$ 	291,311 	$ 	- 	$ 	:' 329,311 	$ 	329,311 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	329,3111 . 	, ,,,  

	

Total Hillsdale/Gull 	$ 	406,000 	$ 	188,000 	$ 	291,311 	$ 	- 	885,311 	$ 	405,363 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	405;363 	$ 	479;948 

Totals - All Project Areas $ 10,826,000  $ 5,367,900 I $ -I $ 1,227,676 

(1) The General Fund - Project 1 opening fund balance includes $2,934,000 that is reserved for the repayment of the obligation to the San Mateo Union High School District. 	. 
(2) Loan Repayment to the City of Foster City includes $1.115,676 in principal and $112,000 in interest. The interest payment is shown as a City General Fund revenue. 

With this payment, the loan is fully repaid as of June 30, 2011. 



RESOLUTION NO. 300 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY BUDGET 

FOSTER CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

WHEREAS, Agency staff has prepared a preliminary budget for fiscal year 
2011-2012, a copy of which has heretofore been submitted to the Community 
Development Agency of the City of Foster City (the "Agency"). Said budget provides 
for the amount, as shown in the attached Exhibit A, to be expended by the Agency in 
the carrying out of the Plan for the Foster City Community Development Project Area 
One, Marlin Cove, and the Hillsdale / Gull Project Areas during said period; and, 

WHEREAS, the Agency has adopted Redevelopment Plans (the 
"Redevelopment Plan") for the Foster City Community Development Project Area 
One, the Marlin Cove Redevelopment Project, and the Hillsdale / Gull 
Redevelopment Project (the "Project") which includes provisions for the allocation of 
taxes from the Project Area to the Agency for the purposes of redevelopment; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 3334.2 of the California Community Redevelopment Law 
(Health and Safety Code Section 33000 et seq.) requires that not less than twenty 
percent (20%) of all taxes so allocated be used by the Agency for the purpose of 
increasing, improving, and preserving the community's supply of low- and moderate-
income housing available at affordable housing cost; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 33334.2(g) of the Community Redevelopment Law 
provides that the Agency may use such funds outside the Project Area if a finding is 
made by resolution of the Agency and the City Council that such use will be of benefit 
to the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Foster City Community 
Development Agency does hereby find that the budget amounts on the attached 
Exhibit A for Fiscal Year 2011-2012 are necessary and appropriate expenditures to 
carry on the operational activities of the Community Development Agency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the use of taxes 
allocated from the Project Area for the purpose of increasing, improving and 
preserving the community's supply of low- and moderate-income housing available at 
affordable housing cost outside the Project Area will be of benefit to the Project. 



Resolution No. 300 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed 
planning and administrative costs proposed for the Housing Funds are not only 
necessary, but proportionate to the amount proposed for actual housing assistance 
activities, as described in the memo to the Agency Executive Director dated June 6, 
2011. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS DETERMINED AND ORDERED, as follows: 

1. The Community Development Agency finds that the use of housing 
fund revenue for planning and administrative costs is necessary for the 
production, improvement and preservation of low- and moderate-
income housing. 

2. The budget for fiscal year 2011-2012 in the form of the Exhibit A, 
attached hereto, is hereby approved and adopted as the budget for 
this Agency for said fiscal year. 

3. The Executive Director shall transmit to the City a copy of the 
approved budget. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED as a resolution of the Foster City Community 
Development Agency at the regular meeting held on the 20 th  day of June, 2011, by 
the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Members Frisella, Kiesel, and Chair Koelling 

Members Bronitsky and Wykoff 

None 

None 

LINDA KOELLING, 

ATTEST: 

DORIS L. PALMER, SECRETARY 



Totals - All Project Areas $ 	892,000 $ 	709,044 I $ 

CDA Exhibit A 

Community Development Agency 
Summary of Resources and Requirements by Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Available": 	Estimated 	 :, ,.., 	, 	Operating 	Capital 	Total:!' :*' 	i :  Available 
Fund 	 : 	July 1,::2011 	Revenues 	Transfers In 	Transfers Out 	Total Available 	Expenditures 	Expenditures 	Requiremehis' , 	June 30 2012  

311 	General Fund - Project 1 	 .$ 	 - 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	$ 	 - 	$ 

312 	Housing Fund-Project 1 	 $ 	 - 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	 - 	$ 	- 	$*K''' 

316 	Project Redevelopment Fund - CIP 	$::::::: 	 - 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	$ 	- 	 - 
Total Project Area One 	 - 	$ 	- 	' $ 	 $ 	- 	$  

317 	General Fund - Marlin Cove 	 586,000 	$ 	- 	$ 	406,450 	:: :179,550 	$ 	179,550 	 ' 	' -'179,50 

	

), 	: 
318 	Housing Fund - Marlin Cove 	 146,000 	$ 	406,450 	$ 	 , 552,450 	$ 	345,194 	$ 	 ;' 345,194 	:: 207,255:: - 	 - 

Total Marlin Cove ::$ 	:: 	$ 	732,000 	$ 	406,450 	$ 	406,450 	$ 	732,000 	$ 	524,744 	$ 	- 	';'!$1 _ 	524,744 ,   ::$ :,::: 	207,256; 
319 	General Fund - Hillsdale/Gull 	!:$ j :: 	$ 	125,000 	$ 	- 	$ 	82,600 , $ 	42,400 	$ 	42,400 	$ 	- 	 42,400 	$  

320 	Housing Fund - Hillsdale/Gull 	$ 	18o,o0o: 	$ 	35,000 	$ 	82,600 	$ 	- 	$ 	297,600 	$ 	141,900 	$ 	- 	141,900 	$ 	!: 	155 700:' , 

	

Total Hillsdale/Gull „$ 	: 180,000 	$ 	160 ; 000 	$ 	82,600 	$ 	82,600 	$ 	340,000, 	$ 	184,300 	$ 	- 	$ 	184,300 	$ 	155;700 

Note 1: Project Area One reached its tax increment cap of $170 million as of June 30, 2011. All remaining assets were transferred to the City of Foster City under the terms of a Public Improvements 
Reimbursement Agreement, an Affordable Housing Reimbursement Agreement, and/or a Cooperative Services Agreement, such that the City will provide services on behalf of the Agency and at the 
Agency's direction in accordance with the terms of those respective agreements. 



This page intentionally left blank. 
 







This page intentionally left blank. 
 





This page intentionally left blank. 
 









This page intentionally left blank. 
 













This page intentionally left blank. 
 

























This page intentionally left blank. 
 









This page intentionally left blank. 
 









This page intentionally left blank. 
 





























This page intentionally left blank. 
 

























This page intentionally left blank. 
 




	00-Oversight Board Meeting Agenda 20120405
	01-Foster City Oversight Board Committee Roster
	03-Overview and Applicability of Ralph M. Brown Act and Robert's Ruels of Order
	04-Oversight Board Responsbilities and the Provisions of ABx1 26
	06-a OStaff Report Adoptin By-Lawas for Oversight Board 20120405
	06-c Oversight Board By-Laws Draft 20120322
	08-Designation of Secretary Function on Behalf of Oversight Board
	09-Designation of Point of Contact for Communications with California of Finance
	10-Resolution Authorizing the Filing of Stmnt of Org with CA Secretary of State and County Controller
	11- Staff Report Background- Formation
	11-a Staff Report Background on CDA 20120405
	11-a1
	11-b FC CDA Redevelopment Plan 1981 (1)
	11-b1

	11- Staff Report Background- Project Area
	11-c Marlin Cove Redevelopment Plan and Ordinance 1999
	Marlin Cove Redev Plan
	Ord 458-Marlin Cove Rd Plan

	11-c1
	11-d Hillsdale Gull Redevelopment Plan and Ordinance 1999
	Hillsdale Gull Redev Plan
	Ord 460-Hillsdale Gull Rd Plan

	11-d1

	11- Staff Report Background- Year-End Report FY 2010-2011
	11-e AUP Phase 1 & 2
	11-d0 AUP Phase 1 & 2
	11-d1 AUP Phase 1 & 2

	11-e1
	11-f Consideration of Need for Legal Counsel to the Oversight Board
	11-f1
	11-g FC Oversight Board Legal Counsel
	11-g1 FC Oversight Board Legal Counsel
	11-g2 FC Oversight Board Legal Counsel
	11-g3 FC Oversight Board Legal Counsel
	11-g4 FC Oversight Board Legal Counsel

	11-g1
	11-h1 Year-End Report on CDA Activities for FY 10-11
	11-h1
	11-h2 Resolution 294
	11-h3 CFC CDA Auditors' Reports FY 10-11
	11-h4 Combined SCO Report for CDA 2011
	11-h4-1 Combined SCO Report for CDA 2011
	01 - General Info
	02 - Achievement
	03 - Audit Info
	04 - Project Areas Report
	05 - Assessed Valuations
	06 - Pass Throughs
	07 - Summary of SOIs
	08 - Agency Long Term Debt
	09 - Revenues
	10 - Expenditures
	11 - Other Financing Sources
	12 - Assets and Other Debits
	13 - Liab and other credits
	14 - Summary

	201502130946

	11-h5 CD Dept of Housing & Community Development Redevelopment Agency Annual Report FY Ending 2011-06-30 
	11-h6 Resolution 284
	11-h7 Resolution 300
	11-i1-1
	Blank Page
	201502131000
	Blank Page
	201502131000-1
	Blank Page
	201502131000-2
	Blank Page
	201502131001
	Blank Page
	201502131001-1
	Blank Page
	201502131001-2
	Blank Page
	201502131002
	Blank Page

	11-j1-1
	201502131006
	Blank Page
	201502131007
	Blank Page
	201502131007-1





